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2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
31 31 31 31 31
IFRS
103,143 86,956 84,408 83,516 131,888
12,435 10,483 10,176 10,069 15,900
15,539 14,139 14,395 18,505 18,785
1,873 1,705 1,735 2,231 2,265
40,536 (11,330) (3,004) (9,463) 36,935
4,887 (1,366) (362) (1,141) 4,453
908 908 908 908 908
109 109 109 109 109
2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000
169,717 158,302 155,465 146,006 182,507
20,461 19,085 18,743 17,602 22,003
7,834,149 | 6,797,892 | 7,953,499 | 9,322,796 | 12,116,283
944,485 819,554 958,874 | 1,123,956 | 1,460,739
84,859 79,151 77,733 73,003 91,254
10,230,601 | 9,542,445 | 9,371,490 | 8,801,242 | 11,001,582
20,268 (5,665) (1,502) 4,732) 18,468
2,443,510 (682,972)|  (181,081)[  (570,490)| 2,226,502
2.166 2.329 1.955 1.566 1.506
23.884 (7.157) (1.932) (6.481) 20.238
(342,928) 190,424 (703,196)| (1,979,679) (2.,188,022)
(41,343) 22,958 (84,777)|  (238,670)|  (263,788)
118 27 45 49 160
14 3 5 6 19
418,629 (264,894) 704,547 | 2,103,808 | 2,288,623
50,470 (31,936) 84,940 253,635 275,916
78,089 2,071 1,872 126,633 242,260
9,414 250 226 15,267 29,207
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2019 31 12 2018 31 12 83,516
57.9 131,888 2019 31 12
2018 31 12 65,011 74 113,103
2019 31
2018 31 8,741,070
30.6 11,413,259
2019 31 12 2018 31 12
18,505 1.5 18,785
2018 31 12 11,815 2019
31 12 52,389 2018 31
12 25,709 2019 31 12
39,219
2018 31 12 9,463 2019 31
12 36,935
2019 31 2018 31 4,181 22.2 5,109
2019 31
4,559

2019 31 2018 31 3,999 47.6 5,904
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@
31
2018 2019
5 80,332 9,685 127,467 15,367
6 49 6 190 23
7 3,135 378 4,231 510
4 83,516 10,069 131,888 15,900
8 (55,113)|  (6.644)  (99,672)]  (12,016)
9 (9,898)]  (1,193)]  (13,431) (1,619)
(65,011)  (7.838)| (113,103)]  (13,636)
18,505 2,231 18,785 2,265
10 (4,611) (556) (5.,322) (642)
11 (25,709)|  (3,099) 39,219 4,728
14 (293) (35)
(11,815)|  (1,424) 52,389 6,316
13 2,352 284 (15,454) (1,863)
(9,463)]  (1,141) 36,935 4,453
4 0
29 104 13
9,459)|  (1,140) 37,039 4,465
9,459)|  (1,140) 37,039 4,465
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31
2018 2019

14 | 3,750,637 452,177 | 4,558,193 549,536
20 246,327 29,697 58,243 7,022
16 57,761 6,964 250,718 30,227
22 126,634 15,267 242,263 29,207
4,181,359 504,105 | 5,109,417 615,991
14 | 4,990,433 601,647 | 6,855,066 826,447
16 148,235 17,871 150,549 18,150
15 1,119 135 1,223 147
17 12 1
18 16 2

19 1,650 199
5,141,437 619,852 | 7,006,866 844,748
23 | 3,836,448 462,522 | 5,569,338 671,439
16 91,263 11,003 47,569 5,735
24 7,431 896 8,612 1,038
21 1,209 146 584 70
25 62,899 7,583 277,624 33,470
22 1 0 3 0
3,999,251 482,150 | 5,903,730 711,754
182,108 21,955 | (794,313)|  (95,762)
23 | 4,920,462 593,211 | 5,926,677 714,520
16 257,077 30,993 95,489 11,512
19 7,880 950
5,177,539 624,204 | 6,030,046 726,982
146,006 17,602 182,507 22,003
27 908 109 908 109
28 144,734 17,449 181,131 21,837
FVOCI 29 364 44 468 56
146,006 17,602 182,507 22,003
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(©)
2017 31 908 109 | 154,197 | 18,590 360 43 | 155,465 | 18,743
29 4 0 4 0
(9,463)| (1,141) (9,463)| (1,141)
9,463)| (1,141) 4 0| (9.459)| (1,140)
2018 31 908 109 | 144,734 | 17,449 364 44| 146,006 | 17,602
14 (717) (86) @17 (86)
19 179 22 179 22
2018 908 109 | 144,196 | 17,384 364 44 | 145,468 | 17,538
29 104 13 104 13
36,935 | 4,453 36,935 | 4,453
36,935 | 4,453 104 13| 37,039 | 4,465
2019 31 908 109 | 181,131 | 21,837 468 56 | 182,507 | 22,003

IFRS IFRS
538,000 28
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O]
31

2018 2019
(9,463) (1,141) 36,935 4,453
17/18 2 0
6 (49) ) (190) (23)
(2,352) (284) 15,454 1,863
5 (80,332) 9,685)|  (127,467)|  (15,367)
8 55,113 6,644 99,672 12,016
462,700 55,783 |  (402,908)|  (48,574)
(528,997)(  (63,776) 280,016 33,759
14 | (1,458,806)| (175,874)| (2,531,116)| (305,151)
(141,463)(  (17,055) 189,558 22,853
(309,693)|  (37,337)| 214,768 25,892
(2,013,342)|  (242,729)| (2,225,274)| (268,279)
78,057 9,411 118,750 14,317
(41,683) (5,025)  (75,126) (9,057)
(2,711) (327) (6,372) (768)
(1,979,679)|  (238,670)| (2,188,022)| (263,788)
17/18 (30) 0
6 49 6 190 23
49 6 160 19
23 | 25,616,623 | 3,088,340 | 34,218,871 | 4,125,427
23 [(23,512,815)| (2,834,705)|(31,930,248)| (3,849,511)
2,103,808 253,635 | 2,288,623 | 275,916
124,178 14,971 100,761 12,148
1,872 226 126,633 15,267
583 70 14,866 1,792
22 126,633 15,267 242,260 29,207
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2018
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IFRS
2014 24 1ASB
IFRS
2018 2018 IFRS

2018 IFRS 2017

GDP
IFRS 14
19 28

IFRS SPPI
IFRS
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IFRS SPPI
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30
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2018
IFRS 16 IFRS
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IFRS

IFRS

2018 2019
( ) ( )
21,245 33,719
8,739 29,911
22,478 18,888
7,517 15,702
9,853 12,835
3,235 5,035
8,782 10,420
1,667 5,378
83,516 131,888
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2018 2019
( ) ( )
78,665 122,089
389 3,584
870 1,242
371 507
37 45
80,332 127,467
190,000 2018 49,000
2019 4,231,000 2018
3,135,000
2018 2019
( ) ( )
(96,675) (128,824)
(19,101) (45,770)
(21,523) (40,316)
(1,221) (1,289)
(1,216)
(293) (91)
3,010 3,711
81,906 112,907
(55,113) (99,672)
13,431,000 2018
9,898,000
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10

10

EY
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2018 2019
( ) ( )
(1,241) (1,336)
(721) (953)
(678) (919)
(615) (667)
(219) (238)
(160) (82)
(169) 197)
(109) (110)
87 (128)
(1) (13)
(591) (677)
@
@
(4,611) (5,322)
2018
PwC
2018 2019
( ) ( )
(1,121) (1,210)
(74) (78)
(46) (48)
(1,241) (1,336)
2018 2019
( ) ( )
271) (265)
271) (265)




11

39,219,000

2018
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2018

( ) )
(548,838) 363,635
(249,582) 99,561
798,152 (463,099)
(268) 97
(25,441) 39,122
(25,709) 39,219

25,709,000 2019
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12

13

EY

EY
2018 2019
( ) )
(145) (130)
EY 74) 107)
(219) (238)
2018 2019
( ) )
(4,557) (6,656)
548 909
(4,009) (5.747)
6,361 (9,707)
2,352 (15,454)
2018 2019
( ) )
(11,815) 52,388
24.93 24.93
2,945 (13,060)
19 @n
(1,170) (3.322)
@ @
11 47
548 909
2,352 (15,454)
2019 25 2018 25
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2019
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2018
( ) ( )
2018 2018 2019
( ) ( ) ( )
3,750,637 3,750,637 4,559,203
(717) (1,010)
3,750,637 3,749,920 4,558,193
( ) ( )
2018 2018 2019
( ) ( ) ( )
3,750,637 3,749,920 4,558,193
4,990,433 4,990,433 6,855,066
8,741,070 8,740,353 11,413,259
( )
717)
(293)
(1,010)
ECL ECL
2019 31
(0.295) 9.36
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TLT

16

0.047

33.1

2018

TLT

1997
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ooooooo
TLT
0.047 TLT 51.4 1,000
51,400,000,000 15,100,000,000
750,000
2019 31
TLT TLT
TLT
TLT
2018 2019
( ) ( )
1,115 1,119
4 104
1,119 1,223
2018 2019
( ) ( )
129 988
53,420 245,519
4,212 4,211
57,761 250,718
1,755 17,634
146,480 132,915
148,235 150,549
205,996 401,267
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ooooooo
2018 2019

( ) ( )
1,691 1,829
89,177 44,806
395 934
91,263 47,569
3,437 20,936
253,640 74,553
257,077 95,489
348,340 143,058

IFRS
17
2018 2019

( ) ( )
2017/2018 82 82
13
82 95
2017/2018 82 82
1
82 83

2017/2018

2018/2019 31 12
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2017/2018

2017/2018

2017/2018

2017/2018

2018/2019

25

25.0

14

EDINETOOOO

OO000OO00o0DO000DO000DO00o0Do00noOoO0noo(E20989)

oOoOooodn

2018 2019
) )
9 9
17
9 26
9 9
1
9 10
31 16
2018 31 2019 31
( ) ( )
2018 2018 2019
( ) ( ) ( )
4,711) 4,711) 1,829
28 179 73
6,361 6,361 (9,782)
1,650 1,829 (7.880)
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25.0 2018
1,209,000
22
2019 31
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2018 2019
( ) ( )

36 36

32 33

237,000 47,100

9 66

39

30 1,787 2,293

32 64

24 7,431 8,612

246,327 58,243
2019

2019 31 584,000 2018
2018 2019
( ) ( )

4,568 5,812

122,066 236,451

) 3)

126,633 242,260
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2018 2019
2,453,947 2,424,878
1,181,566 3,754,165 2,738,821 4,590,020
200,935 1,166,297 405,639 1,336,657
3,836,448 4,920,462 5,569,338 5,926,677
2018 2019
1,601,670 404,753 1,451,577 110,352
1,499,026 2,345,706 2,931,756 1,914,182
102,795 1,188,538 495,681 987,855
236,744 375,699 226,835 194,183
396,157 301,550 463,205 1,986,510
56 304,216 284 733,595
3,836,448 4,920,462 5,569,338 5,926,677

731226



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0DO000DO000DO00o0Do00noOoO0noo(E20989)

OooooOodd
2017 2018
2018 31 2019 31
( ) ( )

1,504,171 2,453,947
612 2,818
22,450,829 30,430,393
(21,457,527) (30,524,261)
833 273
(44,971) 61,708
2,453,947 2,424,878
4,112,853 4,935,731
(7.,016) 7,088
2,612,695 3,321,575
(1,467,358) (1,191,597)
13,669 10,307
(329,112) 245,738
4,935,731 7,328,841
382,597 0

(510)

(380,581)

(1,506)
0 0
1,211,120 1,367,232
658 1,116
553,099 466,903
(207,348) (214,390)
413 702
(190,710) 120,733
1,367,232 1,742,296
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364
LIBOR
2019 31 0.08 3.4257
2019 31 5,569,338,000 2018 3,836,448,000
5,926,677,000 2018 4,920,462,000
24
8,612,000 2018 7,431,000
712,000 7,900,000
25
2018 2019
( ) ( )
56,600 268,700
44 1
30 5,525 7,935
590 805
139 183
1
62,899 277,624

26

751226



2019

27

454

454

100

2018 24

2019

28

10,000 2018

2,000 2018

2018

10,000 )

2,000 )
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2018 2019
( ) ( )
4,540 4,540
908 908
2018
( )
2018 31 2018 31
( ) ( )
144,734 144,734
717)
179
144,734 144,196




29 FVOCI

2017

FVOCI
2018 31
FVOCI
2019 31

30

TFS
13,431,000 2018
2018 5,345,000

UK
UK
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360

364
104

468

TFS 100

9,898,000 7,191,000
30
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UK
AO
4,231,000 2018 3,135,000
2,293,000 2018 1,787,000
190,000 2018 49,000
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2019 31
23
2018 2019
( ) ( )
382,597 0
(380,581)
1,216
(1,726)
(1,506)
0 0
2018 2019
( ) ( )
7,317,966 8,741,070
7,907,769 12,658,792
(6,448,963) (10,126,457)
78,665 122,089
(76,390) (113,373)
(1,221) (1,289)
1,131 1,359
(37,887) 132,077
8,741,070 11,414,268

14



31

2019

31

31
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2018 2019
( ) ( )
5,345 7,101
180 744
5,525 7,935
2018 2019
( ) ( )
1,787 2,293
1,787 2,293
2018 2019
( ) ( )
24,156 21,807
70,951 108,566
424,115 403,112
1,670,907 2,235,698
2,190,129 2,769,183
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32.1
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2018 2019
( ) )

1,355 5,697

(324) (2,463)

1,338 1,868

460 442

2,829 5,544
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2018
( ) ( ) ( )
(106) (18) (124)
106 18 124
2019
( ) ( ) ( )
(208) (23) (231)
208 23 231

32.3
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2018 31
2,652,314 2,338,119 4,990,433
1,119 1,119
1,520,220 2,230,417 3,750,637
1,787 1,787
237,000 109 237,109
126,634 126,634
cP (2,453,947) (2,453,947)
EMTN (365,560) (816,006) (1,181,566)
(56) (200,879) (200,935)
(5,525) (5,525)
(56,644) (730) (57,374)
@ @
EMTN (2,470,418)  (1,283,747) (3.,754,165)
(304,216) (862,081) (1,166,297)
(@) 1,032,284 (741,135) (3,240) 287,909
() (971,716) 829,448 (76) (142,344)
(@)+(b) 60,568 88,313 (3,316) 145,565
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2019 31
3,512,280 3,342,786 6,855,066
1,223 1,223
1,540,114 3,019,089 4,559,203
2,293 2,293
47,139 199 47,338
242,263 242,263
cP (2,424,878) (2,424,878)
EMTN (1,113,098)  (1,625,723) (2,738,821)
(75) (405,564) (405,639)
(7,935) (7,935)
(268,701) (989) (269, 690)
(©) (©))
EMTN (3,823,732) (766,288) (4,590,020)
(792,836) (543,821) (1,336,657)
@) (677,347) 616,299 (5,208) (66, 255)
() 654,927 (396,701) an 258,209
(a)+(b) (22,420) 219,598 (5,224) 191,954
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32.4

2019 31 Aa3
2018 2019
( ) ( )
3,750,637 4,559,203
238,896 49,631
57,761 250,718
126,634 242,263
4,990,433 6,855,066
148,235 150,549
2,190,129 2,769,183
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2019 31 25
268,700,000 2018 56,600,000
31
64,500,000 2018 26,301,000 141,100,000
2018 46,228,000
32.5
30
2018 31 12
( ) ) «( ) ( )
7,935 224,936 1,216,810
1,739,811 714,956
EMTN 333,296 1,101,876 3,828,449
56,600

2,137,642 2,041,768 5,045,259
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2018

2019
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81 12
( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
9,542 425,352 1,364,521
1,284,128 1,178,737
748,711 2,084,405 4,750,272
268,700
2,311,081 3,688,494 6,114,793
31 12
( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
2 2,770 9,176
(1,208,138)  (1,997,974)  (6,156,124)
1,218,075 1,930,083 6,115,354
9,939 (65,121) (31,594)
2,147,581 1,976,647 5,013,665
31 12
( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
1,883 2.144 1,631
(1,288,625) (3,165,847)  (5,442,361)
1,214,585 3,006,685 5,359,213
(72,157)  (157,018) (81,517)
2,238,924 3,531,476 6,033,276

87/226



2018 31
2019 31
32.6
32.7
2018 31
2019 31
33
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12
) ( ) ( ) ( )
3,240,566
3,240,566
12
) ( ) ( ) ( )
4,117,883
4,117,883
/
) ( ) ( ) ( )
205,961 (348, 340) 180,400 38,021
35 35
205,996 (348, 340) 180,400 38,056
/
) ( ) ( ) ( )
401,189 (143,058) (221,600) 36,531
79 79
401,267 (143,058) (221,600) 36,610
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2018 31

) ( ) ( ) )
1,119 1,119
205,996 205,996
348,340 348,340

2019 31

) ( ) ) )
1,223 1,223
401,267 401,267
143,058 143,058

89/226

oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0DO000DO000DO00o0Do00noOoO0noo(E20989)
oOoOooodn

33.2

2018 31 2019 31

8,741,070 8,816,460 11,413,259 11,474,937
7,431 7,431 8,612 8,612

1,367,232 1,389,112 1,742,296 1,761,064
2,453,947 2,453,947 2,424,878 2,424,975
4,935,731 4,951,570 7,328,841 7,395,774

7,431 7,431 8,612 8,612

EMTN
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2019

28
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Statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2019

Mol 2018 We
€000 €000

Inlerast income 3 127 487 £3,332
Deddand income § 120 45
Guaranise o incame 7 403 3135
Rwvanue 4 131 858 B3, 516
Inberest exponsos a (59,672 {55,113}
Foo axpenass 4 {13,431) (9,804}
GCasd of lunding (113,103 (E8,011)
Gross profl 18,785 18,508
Administration coponses 1a {5.322) [4,641)
Mol gaing / {fossas) on financisl instrumeants 11 0218 (28 T05)
hdjustment crodil loss on group lcans. 1" {263)
Profil f {loss) befon tax 52,389 {11,615]
Taxation 13 (15.454) 2352
Profit J {lass) for the year 36435 1,463
Oiher comprahensive income, ned of Lax
Itms thal will be rediassified subsequently to Profit or Loss
Nat change in fair value of avalable for sale financial essats . 4
Iimia that will not be reclassified subssquently to Profit or Loss
Hat gain on oquity irstrumonts designated of fo:r value Ehrewgh othor 29 104
comprahansive incoms =
Talal comprahensia incoma for the yea (loas), net of lax 7,038 19,458
Attributablo bo; R
Equity halder 37,039 {2.458]

The pobes on pages B to 40 are an megral pard of these Finandal Statements
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TOYOTA MOTOR FINANCE (NETHERLANDS) B

Statement of financial position as at 31 March 2019

MNota 3 March 2049 31 March 2018
L] €000

Assots
Curront assets
Loans to elated companies 14 4 558 103 3,750,637
Oihor roceivabies 20 55,243 248 327
Dervative financial instnuments. 16 250,716 &7 ma
Cash and cash equivalents k] 242 263 16634
Tatal currant assats 5108417 4,181 255
MHon-current assets
Loans to roldted companies 14 0,055,060 4,290,433
Derfvathe financal Rstruments 16 150,548 148 236
Equity inveatmant = rmlated company 15 1.223 1118
Propedy, plant and squipmant 17 12 -
Inlangibla astals 18 18 -
Defarned tax sssets 18 - 1,850
Total pon-curren| sssals 7,006,806 5,141 437
Liatsilities
Current liabilities
Bosrowings 23 5,560,338 HAMG 408
Dervaliva financlal instnemants. 16 47,568 91,263
Financial guarares liability 24 BEI2 TAN
Cumrant tax liabiity 21 5pd 1,208
Ottt Labdfties and accrusd expansas 25 27T EM 62 BEG
Bark overdraft 2 3 1
Total curent labilies 5,900,730 15649 251
Met currant lisblilles | asaets {754.313) 182 106
Mon-current llabllitles
Barrowings 23 5926 677 4 520 4632
Derwativie financial instramants 18 o5 480 257077
Defared tax liabiites 18 7,880 -
Tatal non-curment liabillties 16,030,045 5177 834
Het assets 182,607 146,006
Shanholders
Equity atiributable |o owners of tha parom
Share capital - 908 9048
Redainad aamings 28 LR kG 144,734
Equity insbuments FVOC| 2% 468 364
Tatal sharcholder's oquity 182,507 140,008

The rates en pages B to 40 are an irsegral padt of these Financial Statemants
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TOYOTA MOTOR FINANGE (NETHERLANDS) BV,

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2018

Hols Share Retained Fair Value Todal
Capital Eamings Reserves

€000 €000 €000 F000
Batance at 31 March 2017 508 154 1897 30 155,485
Equity Instrumants 2% - - 4 '
Result for the yaar - {9,483 = {8.463)
Tatal compeehinshe incomae Tor the
yoar 5 {9.453) 4 (9,450
Batwnce at 31 March 2818 Gan 144,734 g4 146,008
Expecied credil loss adjustment 14 - M7 - (717}
Delesred tax acjusiment 18 - 174 - 178
Batance at 1 Apeil 2018 BOE 144,108 354 145 468
Equity instruments 2] - - 104 104
Rasull for he yaar - 36,835 - 38.935
Total compremarahe income fof the L
wanr e 36 935 104 aroag
Balance at 31 March 2018 a08 181,131 468 182507

Thir epening balanoe of fetal equity has changed compared fo tha clasing hadancs of priar yaar dus 1o the impad of IFRS 8. The fotal
mpad of the IFRS 8 implementation on fotal equity is o decrease of € 538 000 (refer note 28 ).

The noles on pages 9 1o 40 are an integral par of these Financial Satements
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TOYOTA MOTOR FINANCE (NETHERLANDS) BV,

Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2019

Hote 2019 28
£'000 €000
Profil  {Loss) for the year 36,835 [9,453)
Adjustmenis for:
Dapraciatian &nd Amartiation i7/ii8 = =
Dividerd income 3 {190 49
Taxation 1E.454 {2,352)
Interess Income § (12T 44T) (B0, 232)
Inierest axpanss 8 95,672 55,113
Fair value unrealsed gaing and losses (402 £e6) 482,700
Unreafised forokgn sxchango going and losass 280,048 (538.847)
Increase in loans to related comparies 14 (2,531,116 (1,458,806)
{incressa) I decreass in other cument assets 186,558 {141,463)
Increane [ (desease) in olher curnent labilkies 214,768 {308,693)
[2,225,274) 2,013,342}
Intenes| received 118,750 F AT
Interest pald 75,126} [41,683)
Tax paid (6.372) (2711}
Cash flow fram aperating activites (2,188,023} {1,878, 675)
Purchasa of PPE and intangibile assets 17118 {30} .
Diriend recahed [ 180 44
Cash flow from Investing sctivites 1ED 4
Proceads from borrowings 23 34,218,871 258184822
Respayrnent of bormowings. 23 (31,830,248) (23,512 818)
Cash flow from financing actiities 2268 G2 2,100,508
Med incroase in cash and cash equivalents 100,781 124,178
Cash and cash aquivalants af the beginning of the year 126,633 1,872
Exchange losses an cash and cash equivalents 14,5656 583
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year b 242,760 126,633

Tha notes on pagas & o 40 ans & integral part of these Financlal Stalements
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TOYOTA MOTOR FINANCE (NETHERLANDS) BV,

Notes to the Financial Statements

1. General Informatien

Toyola Motor Finance (MNetherlands) BV, (the Company’) is a wholly-owned subsigiany of Toyota Financial
Sewvices Corporation, The principal aclivity of the Company ks to 8ot as a group finance subsidiary, The
Company raises funds by issuing bonds and noles in the intermationsl capital markels and from other sources
and on- lends 1o other Toyola companios. The Company also Esues guarantses for debt Essuance of other
Toyola companies.

The Company |8 meorparated and domiciled in the Metherlands. The address of its regisiared office ks Woild
Trade Center, Tower H, Lavel 10, Zuidplein B0, 1077 XV, Amslerdam, the Netherlands,

The ultimate management company and cantrolling party and thi largest undartaking into which the Company's
resulis are consolidated is Toyola Molor Corposation, which & incorporated in Japan

The smallest undertaking into which the Company's results are consolidated iz Toyeta Financial Services
Corporation, which iz incorporated in Japan

The Financial Statements of Toyota Motor Corporation can be oblained Trom
http:tfwmwew. tayots-glabal com.

Thesa Financial Staternents have been approved for Issue by the Board of Management on 16 July 2018,

2. Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting polices applied in the preparation of these Financial Siatements are sel oul balow,
These policies have bean consistently sppiad to all the years presenmed, unless otherwise stated.

Tha Comparny has no subsidiary, joint venture or associated sompany iwestments and |5 therafen: not required
1o prepare consofdated finencial stalements,

Basis of proparation

= The Financial Staements of thi Company have bean prepared in sccordance with Inlematicnal Financial
Reporting Standards {IFRS) and interpretations issued by the Intemational Financial Repoding
Intespretations Commiltes (IFRIC) as adopled by the European Union and also in accondance with the
statutory provisions of Pan 9, Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code,

* As a resull of the accounting policos adopled, the Financial Siatemants of the Company are also
consistent with all IFRS issuad by the Intematonal Accounting Standards Board (IAS8) and Interprstations
I=swad by IFRIC.

* The Financial Siatements have been prepared under ihe hislorcal cost convention, excapt for dervative
financial instruments, rancial essets and liabilities hold for trading or designated as measured at fair value
through profit or loss, financial instruments not held in a hold to collect business modal, dobl insturmenls
that do not mael tha solely payments of princpal and interest (SPPD) les, all of which are measured at fair
vidlug,

* The preparation of Enancial statements i conformity with (FRS requires the use of certain critical
nccounting estimates. It also requires management to exercisa its judgemant in the precass of applying
the Company's accounting policies. The areas Involving a higher degree of judgement or complaxity, or
areas where assumplions and estimales are significant 1o the Financial Stalements are disclosed in note
3

* The Companmy's Financial Statements are presented in Euro, which is the Company's functional and
reparting eurrency. Excepl as indicated financial information presented has bean presenled in Euro and
rounded 1o the nearest thowsand,

Golng concern

There was an excess of current liabilities over current assets 8 31 March 2019, Managemeond of liquidity risk
Is explained in nola 32.5 and, having assessed the availabla liquidity faciities and cradit support faciities in
place, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate resource o eontinue o
furd Its current cbigations for the foreseeable fulure and fhenefore the Financial Stalemends have been
prepared an a geing concern basis,

97/226



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0DO000DO000DO00o0Do00noOoO0noo(E20989)
oOoOooodn

TOYOTA MOTOR FINANGE (NETHERLANDS) B.V.

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
Hew and amended standards effective for the financial year starting 1 April 2018
IFRS 9

IFRS 9, Financiy instanenls, addresses the classification, measurement and recagnition of fnanclal assets
and financial liabilites.

On 24 July 2014, the IASE issued the final wersion of IFRS 9 incorporating a new expected lose impairmen
model and introdzing amendrments 1o the cissification and measurement requiremants for financial asseds
This version supersodes all previows versions and B mandatorily efactive for periods beginning on ar afer 1
January 2018, As of 1 April 2018 IFRS 9 has become appicable to the Financal Sistements of the Company,
The Coempany has underaken a delalled assessment of the impact on the firancial assob classifications and
thia requirermanis for financial liabilites. The new hedge accounting rules do not apply as the Company doas nol
apply hedge accounting. The Company has applied IFRS 9 retrospectively, with the inltal application date of 1
April 2018 without adjustng the comparative information for the period beginning 1 Apnl 2017 The new
impairment modal for financial essats is an expected credit loss model and s expacied 1o resull in the aardier
recognition of credi losses. The impairment model includes a wide range of relaled party specific finantial —
and non-inancal data as wall as forwand looking information as economic inputs such as GDOP growth,
unamployment rales, extemal trade and avtomative market stetistics. The impact of IFRS 9 on the Company's.
Financial Statements is shown on the Siatement of changes in equity on page 7, nole 14, Loans to relpled
companigs, on page 20, and nate 18, Dofarred tax asseis, on page 23, as well a5 note 28, Relsined samings,

an page 27

IFRS 9 = Solely Payments of Principal and Interest (SPPI)
The classification decision for non-equity financial assets under IFRS 8 s dependent on two key crilena:

= The business madal within which the asset is held (the business model test)
= The contractual cash flows of the asset (tha SPPI 1asl)

Consaquently, delermining whelher a financial assel meets (he SPPI lest is necessary i onder to delermine the
appropnate classificabion cidegory under IFRS 8.

I & non-equity financial asset fails the SPPI test, it must be clessified at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss
(FVTPL) iin its entirety. Unlike A5 34, it is no longer poesible to separate a financlal assal into a ‘hosl’ eonlract
{ofien measured at amortised cost) and an ‘embedded dervative’ companent (measurad ot FVTPLY. If a non-
equity Ainandal assel pesses the SPPI fest, then it will either be classfied at amortised cost if the "hold to collect’
business model test iz mat. or a1 Fair Value Through Cther Comprehensive Incame (FVOCH if the 'hald bo eollect
and sall' business modal test s mat.

The SPPI test

Thia 5PPI test requires that the confractual tarms of the financial asset (as a whole) give rise lo cash Bows tha
are sobaly payments of principal and inferest on the principal amounis outstanding i.0. cash Bows that ara
consistant with a basic lending arrangament. Unlike the business model test, this assessmant must be carried
out on an instrument by Instrument basis.

Principal is defined as besng the fair value of the financial asset at initlal recogniion. Interest is dafined narowly
a9 baing compansalion for the time valug of money and credit risk although it can also include compensation
for oiher landing risks such as liquidity, administrative costs and a profil margin. Cash flows that provide
compensation for other nsks such as equity or commadity risk will fall the SPPI test because they ane
inconsissent with a basic lending arangemant.

Hold to collect

The objective of the 'hold to collect’ business moded is 1o hold linancial assets o collect heir contraciusl cash
Nows, rathes than wilh a view to seling the assets lo generate cash Nows. However, there is no requiramend that
financial assels are abyvays held until their maturity, and IFRS © identifies some sales thatl are cons'dered
cansistent with the 'hold to collect’ business model ivespective of ther frequency and significance, This is in
contras] to the held o matunly categonry under IAS 38 which penalised entities for sabes in all but exceptional
circumstances [comemonly known as ‘tainting nules’). Neverihaless, it s expected that sales would be incidental
fov s Bginess model and conseguently an eity will need 1o assess the natum, requency and significance of
ary sakos oocurring.

Crnly financiol assets ta meet the SP71 test and are hedd in 8 ‘hold fo collect’ business model can be classified
at amortised cost
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The business model of the Company ie 8 'hold 1o collec? business model. The Company has made an
assessment of all srstanding loan Assela and delerminad thal the SPPI test is met in all cases,

The adoption of IFRS & has changed the Company's accounting for loan loss impaisments by replacing 1AS 38s
incurred loss approach with a forward-leaking expected crodit loss (ECL) approach. IFRS § requires the
Company lo rocord an allowance for ECLs for all loans and other debt financial assets naot held =t FWYTPL,
together with lean commitments and financial guaraniee conracts, The allswance is based on the EGLs
assockated with the probability of defaull in the next twelve months unless there has been a sigrificant increase
in credit risk since origination. If the financial asset meets the definition of purchasad or originaled credd Impaired
{FOCI), the a¥owance is based on the change in the ECLs over the o of the asset.

Three stages of impairmaont

Impaérment of loans is recognised — on an individual or collective basis — in three stages under [FRS 9

Siage 1 —\When a foan is onginated or purchased, Expectad Credit Losses (ECLs) resulling from default avents
that are possible within the next 12 months ane recognised | 12-month ECL) and a loss allowance is established.
On subsequen reporting dates, 12-month ECL also applies 1o exisling leans with no significant increase in credit
risk since their initial recognition. Interest revenue is calcuated on the loan's gross carmying amount (that is,
witheu deducton for ECLs),

Stage 2 - If & lnan's credil nsk has increased sgrificantly since initial recognition and is not considerad fow,
lifetime ECLs are recognised. An indicator for the Company would ba a significant change in the expacted
periormance and behaviour of a borower (e.g., an increase in the expecied number or extent of delayed
contracheal payments), The calculation of inerest revenus is the same as for stage 1,

Stage 3 — W the boan's credil risk increases 1o the point where il is considered credil-impaired, inleres! revenue
is calculated based on the loan's amortised cost (that is, the gross carrying amount less the loss allowance).
The Company will apply for the calculaton of the imterest the effective interest rate 1o the met amonised cost af
the financial azset. Wauld the Bnancial assets become no langer ciadil-impaired, the Company will revart ta the
caleulating intenest income on o gross basis. Lifetime ECLs are recognized, as in stage 2

The Company provides loans io a limited number of atver Toyola companies.

The impairment model indiudes a wide range of relzted pany specific inancis = and non-financial data as wall
a3 forward looking information as sconomic inputs such as GOP growth, unsmployment rates, extemal trade
and audomotive markot statistics.

The Company has never expananced any asent of default or credit Ioss on its loan Bssets.
Mer significan evenl has occurmed since tha origination of any of tha oulslanding loan assats.
All cutstanding lean assels are eonsidered 1o be in slage 1 by the Company.

A stage 2 avent, or default, would occur whan contrachuea! payments from tha borrowear ane mone than 30 days
pasi due,

A stage 3 event woukd occur whon a bormmowar becomes 80 days past due on its contraciual payments.,

IFRS 9 - Issued Financlal Guarantoes
Identifying Financial Guarantee Contracts

IFRS @ ratsine the eame financial guarantee definflion as A5 38, ie, a conlract that requines. the issuer io make
apecificd payments 1o edmburss the halder for b loss it mcurs because a specified deblor fails to make payments
when due in actordance with the terms of a debt instrurmnent.

IFRS 9 refains the same ndial recognation mequirements as 1AS 389 for Issued Financlal Guarantee Contracts
{FGCs) but intreduces different subsegquent measurement reguirements,

Initial Recognition
An issued FGC is a financial liability and Is initially recognised al fair vafue.

The Company issues guaraniees o debl holders of other TMC subsakaries. The Company receives guarantes
feas from TMC subidiaries in respect of the guaranieed ded! in issuance, The guarantess ang isswsd under the
credii support the Company has with TESC and for which the Company pays a cradit suppor fee. The initial fair
valua is tha present value of the future cash fAows at the point of iesuance of the debt being quarantesd,
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Subsequent Measuremant
Subsequently, the FGC is measured at the higher of -

i, Tha IFRS 9 Expacled Credit Loss (ECL) allewanes, and
. The amount initially recognised (i.e. fair vakie) less any cumulative amount of ncome | amanisation
reqognised,

Equity Investmants

All gialy investments in scope of IFRS 9 are measured at fair value in ihe stalernent of finandal posillon. The
Company recognises falr valee changes for #s equity investment in other comprahenaéve income

The Company doas not assess the aquity iwestmant for impairment and cannol reclassily in profit and less
gains or losses previously recognised in OC! on disposal of these Instruments - also referred 1o s ‘recyaling’.

The Company has no subsidiany, joint veniure or associated company investiments and therefore ne candanaad
consolidated financial staternenis are produced

Derivatives

All dervatives in scope of IFRS 8, including these linked 1o unquated equity investmants, are measured at fair
vadue, The Company does not apply hadge accounting, Fair value changes are recognised in profif of loss.

Embedded detvatives. An embedded dedvetive is & companent of a hybrid confract that also includes a non-
derivative host, with the effect that some of the cash lows of the combned instrumant vary in & way sémilar fo
8 stand-glone derivative.

Tha Campany has reviewsd all contracts for embadded dervatives and found there are none,
IFR3 15

IFRS 15, Rovenua from Contracls with Customars, is effective for annual reporting pariods beginning on or after
1 January 2018, IFRS 15 establishes the principlas thet an enlity applies whan ripeing information about tho
nature, amount, fiming and wncertainty of revenue and cash lows from a contract with a customer. Apalying
IFRS 15, an enlity recodgneses revenue o depicl the transfer of promised goods or services io ihe cestomer in
an armount that reflects the consideration 1o which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods
or services. The Company ks nod providing goods or services within the scope of IFRS 15 and has no revernss
from providing goods of services, IFRS 18 has no impact on the Financial Statements of tha Company

Critical aecounting estimates and judgemonts

The motes 1o te Financial Statamems sal out areas where significant judgement, complex caleulations or
assumplions have been used to arrive at tha Financial Statements presenled. Areas of significant judgament or
complaxiy will include the falr valuation of Bnancial instruments as well as expected credit losses,

New standards, amendmants and interpretations lssusd but nat effective for the financial year
beginning 1 April 2048 and not early adopted

IFRS 16, Loases, specifios how an IFRS reporter will recogniae, measurs, presant and disclose leases. Tha
standard provides a eingle lessee accounting modael, requiring lessees ta recognise assets and liabiliies for all
leagas unless tha lease tarm is 12 months or less or the underlying assel has a low value, The Company has
made an assassment of its keases and has determingd that the amendment will have no matarial impact on he
Flnanclal Statements of the Company.

Thare are no ather IFRSs or IFRIC inerpratations that are not yot effective that would be expected 1o have a
materizl impact on the Company,

iz

100/226



EDINETOOOO

OO000OO00o0DO000DO000DO00o0Do00noOoO0noo(E20989)

TOYOTA MOTOR FINANCE (NETHERLANDS) B.W.

L

g

Segmental reporting

The single operating segrment & reported in 8 manner consistent with ihe Internad reponing provided bo the chie!
operaling decision-maker. The chief operaling decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing parformanca of the oparating sagments, has been identified as the Board af Managermesn) thal makes
stratagic decisions.

Farelgn currency
Transactons and balances

The Financial Statements are presemlad in Euro, which & the Company’s functional currancy.

Fareign surrency transactions are transiated into the funclional cumrency using the exchange rales pravaling at
the daies of the transactions, Forelgn exchange gains and losses resuling from the setflement of such
transactions and from the ranstation at year-and exchange rates of monetary assets and kabdities denominated
in foreign currancies are recognised in the income statement, in ‘Net gaing f fiosses) on financial msiements’

Financial assats

The: classification and measurement of fimancial assets under IFRS & is determined by the business model In
which the assats are held and whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of prinipal and intenost
(SPPI). Under IFRS 8, financial assels can be measured af amortised cost, fair value thwough othor
epmprahenshe income (FVOCH or fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL). These categories replace the [AS
38 classifications of leans and recelvables. avaiable for sale (AFS), FVTPL. and held-to-maturity.

The chassification depends on the purpose for which the financlal assets were gequired, Managermem
determines the classification of the investments al initia! recognition. Regular-way trades of derivatives contracts
are accouried for on a irade date basis, and regular-way irades of all other financial assets are accounmed for
on a seltlemant date basks. A financiad asset (or, where applicable, & part of a financial assat or part of a group
of asmilar financlal assets) is primarily derecagnlsed whien the righls to receive cash flows from the assets has

expired.
Debt instrements at amartised cost

The Company’s koans 1o Toyola group related entities, caah and cesh equivalents, and other recoivables are
clagsified ag deb? instruments al amaetised cost, Loans to related entifies are initially recognised at fair valua
including any incramental transacton costs, Subsequent recognition is at amorbsed cosl using the efective
interes! method. Guarantee fees recevable from fellow subsidianies in respect of dett guaranteed by the
Cormpary are included in "Other receivables’ in the Statement of finencial position.

Financial assets designated at fair value theough OC1 (equity instruments)

Upon initial recognition, the Cempany Imevecably classifias s equity invesiments al FVOCH, Gains and losses
on Mess equity instruments are never recycled o profit, Dividends are recognised In profit or loss as Dividend
income. Equity instrumenis at FWOC| are not subject to an impaimment assessment

Finarcal assets a1 fair value through profit of loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss inclede management's derivative portiolio. The Company
anlers into derivatives fo mitigata the risks associafed with other underlying financial assels and fnancial
liabilities.

Dervatives ane nfially recognised at fair value on the dale a derivalive contract is entered into and are
subsaquently adjusted at fair value. Transaction costa are axpensed in the Stalermnen] of comprebensive noome.
The melhad of recogaising the resulting gain o loss depends on whothor the dervative is designatad as &
hedging instrurnent, and if Sa, tha natura of the lem being hedged. Consequently, all changas in the fair value
of any financial instruments, nel of accrued Interest on derivalives, are recognised immediately in the Slateman
of comprehansive income, within 'Nel gains | (losses) on Bnoancial instruments’. Accrued imerest on darivatives
is rocorded in the income stalemaent within “Interest expensa”.
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Property, plant and eguipment
ltems of property. plani and equipmeni are cared ai cost less any accumulated deprediation and any
accurmulated impairment losses

Depreciabion is charged to profit or loss on a siraight-ing basis so as to wiite off the depreciable ameunt of
proparty, plant and equipment awer the estimated useful iife of the assets ac fallows:

o Finture & Fittings: & yoorg
o Furnitura: S years
o Computer hardware: § yoars

The assels” residual values and useful Ivas are reviewsd, and adjusted if sppropriate, af each raporting dale.

Gains and losses on disposal of Bems of propedy, plant and equipment are determined by camparing proceeds
with the carrying armount. These are included in "Administration expenses’ in the Statement of comprenensve
incoms.

Intangible asseis
Intangible assets that are acquired by the Company are stated at cost less accumulited amortisation and any
accumulated impairment lossos,

Amiortisation is charged to profit or loss on a siraight-ling basis over the assol’s estimated useful Me and is
incheded in "Adminiatration expanses’ in the Statement of comprehensive income,

Thiz astimated useful ecoramic lives are as follows.
a Computer sefbaars: 5 yoars
The agsels” values and usefd lives ane reviewed, and adjusied if appropriate, ot each reponting date.

Gains and Iosses on disposal of Aems of infangible assets are determined by comparing proceeds with the
carrying ameunt, These are included in “Administration expenses’ in the Stalament of comprahensiva income:

Impaimmant of non-financial as=ots

An Impairment loss s the amount by which the carmying amount of an assat exceads its recoverable amount

At each reporting dale the Company assesses whether there ks any indication that an asset may be impaired |
any such mdicalion exists, the recoverable amount of the assel is estimated,

Proparty, plant, equipment ae well as imangible agse4s aro subject 1o an impaimant review if there are svents
or changea In srcumstancs which indicate that the carmping amount may nol be recoverable,

Cash and cash equivalents

Casgh and eash equivalents are defined as cash and degosits which can be realised within three months. These
inchude overnight money market deposils with banks, current account and deposit account balances with banks
and shor-term ewvestments.

Cash and cash equivalants are measured al amartised cost,

Tha cash flow statement has been drawn up in Bccordance with the indirect method, making a distinction
betwean cash flows from oparating, investment and financing scthities. Cash flows related to infarest payments,
recalpts and tax paymants are classifled as cash flows from oparating activities.

Borrowings

Borrgwings are recognised itially af fair value, net of transaction costs incurred and subsequently at amortised
ool Recognilion sl de-necognition is on a seltiement basis,

Depending on the maturity dale of the contract the borrowing is classified as cumesd & non-cuTant,

Taxation

The: charge far current tax is based on the resuls for the penod &5 adjusted for foms that are nat taxabke or
disaliowed. It is calculsted using tax rates thal have been enacled or substantively enacted by the reporting
date.

14
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Deferred income lax is provided in full, using the balance sheet liability method, on temporary diffarances arising
betwaeen the tax bases of assats and liabilites and their carmying amounts in the Financal Statemants, However,
the duferned income tax is nol accounted for If it arises fram indial recognition of an assat or Bability in a
transaction ather than & busingss combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting, nor
laxcable prafil or loss

Defared incoma tax is daterminad wsing tax rates (and laws) that have been enacled or substantively enacted
by the reporiing date and are expecied 1o apply when the related deferred incomse lax assat is realzed or 1he
deformed income tax [iabiity is setthad.

Dafered income lax assets are recognised o the extent that i is probable that future taxable profit will be
available agawnst which the lemporary differences can be ulilised,

Defamed income fax assats and labilities ane offset whan thene is a legally enforceabls right to offset cument tax
assels agains! cumen] tax Fabilies and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilties relate to income
taxes lovied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable enfity o different laxakie enlities whurne
thare ks an intention to selfle the Balances on a nol basis,

Guarantees

The Company issues guarantees 1o dabt hokders af other TMC subgidianes. The Company receives guaranse
fows from TMC subsidiarias in respect of the guarantesd dabl in msuancs, Tha guarantees afe issweod undor the
credit suppart the Company has with TFSC and for which the Company pays a credit suppot fee. The initial fair
wislue is thie prasent value of tha fubune cash flows at the point of Issuance of the guaranies

Revenue recognition

Interest incoma

Inlerest incoma is recorded using the effectiva interest rate [EIR) medhod tor all inancial assels measured al
amortised cost. The EIR is the rale thal discounts estimated fuure cash raceipts through the expected life of
e financal assel or kabdily or, when appropriabe, a shorer patad, to the gross camying amount of the financial
aFsal

The EIR i5 calculated by taking intc account fransaction costs and any discount of premiem on the acquisiion
of the financial asset, as well &s fees and costs Whal are &n inlegral parl of the EIR, The Company recognises
interest income using a rate of retum that represents the best estimate of a constant rale of retum cvar the
expactad e of the loan. Henca, the EIR calculation alsc takes into account the offect of potentially diffcront
interesl rates [hal may be charged al varioos slages of the financial asset’s expected life. and other
characlerislics of the prodect life cydle (inchuding prepayments, penalty interast and charges)

If expectations of Fxed rate financial assets’ o Babilifies” cash flows are revised for reasans olher than credit
risk, then changes lo future contractual cash flows are discounled al the origingl EIR wilth a consequantial
adjustmant 1o Ihe carryng amaunt, The dfference from the plevious carmying amaunt is booked a3 a posiilve or
negalive adjusimant to the camyng amount of the financial asesl or Kabilty on the balance shoel with a
corresponding increase or decreasa in Interest revanusfexpenss calculatad using the affective intarest method.

Guarantes fee income

Guarantas fee income ks recognisad during the life of the guarariee on an accruals baesis in accordance with
the subslance of the relevan! agreéermenls.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognieed whan the right 1o recalve paymant Is astablishad.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements
The notes to the Financial Statements sel out areas where significant judgement, complex calculations or

assumptions have been used to arrive a1 the Financial Statements presented, Arcas of significant judgemant or
complexily wil inchade Bhe fir valustion of inancal instrumenis as well as expecled credit losses,

Fair value estimation of linancial instrumeants
The fair walue of financial instrurnenta that are nol raded inoan active market is detarmined by wsing valuaticn

techniquas, The Company uses a varioly of mathoeds and markel assumptions thatl are based on market
12
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conditions existing al each roparting date. Quoded market pricas or dealer quates for similar instruments are
used for long-term debl. Other techniques, such as estimated discounted cash fiows, are used to deteming the
fair vahue for the remaining fnancial instiaments, The fair value of interest rale swaps, cross currency swaps
and forward foreign exchange contracls is calculated as the present vabss of the estimated future cash flows.

The nominal value kess impaiment provision of other recefvables and payables, normaly maturing within 30
days., are assumed to approximate their fai values, The fair value of finaneial liabilites for disclosure purposes
I5 estimated by discounting the fulure contractual cash Mows at the current market intarest rate thal is available
to the Company for similar financial instrurnents.

3.2 Initial recognition and valuation of guarantees.

Thi initial fair value rocognition of guaraniee labilties, in relation 1o related party debt issuance, is required by
IFRS 8. As the guarantees of relaled party debt are not actively fraded and no initial fee is charged for enteing
It the: guaranes, a valuation technigue is required 10 assess the nitial Eabilsy 1o the third-party dabd holder.

The Company uses the discounted futurs income cash fiows over the life of the guaranios o assess the initial
guarariee liability. Tha initial recognition of the guarantes Eability is calculmod using the market interest rales
appiicable to the specific cumency of dai suance on the date the related party issses the debs,

The estimation of the inifial far value of the guarantess is subject to a significant level of managemant judgemant
and complexify, as the individual refated group companies do nol have a separale credit rating from that of the
ovarall Toyota Motor Corpaoration group. A guaranies aasel is recognised of an emeunt egual to Be quarantes
kaeity. Changes in the vahie of the guarantea lability are maiched by equal changes in the value of the
guarantee assetl, since such changes hava no impact on the Statemaent of comprahensive incoma, no sensitivity
analysis of the guarantee lability is included in the notes o the Financial Statements.

4 Breakdown by geegraphical market
The Company consists of a single operating reparting segmend as defined undar IFRS 8. income genension
i principafly from landing 1o related companies, with ofher income generation fram guareniees of related
companies and from olher investment and deposit income incidental to the primary funding actvities.

Income can be calegorised geographically as follows:

Incoma by area 2018 é‘ED‘IB

€040 5]
U= (growup) arie 21,145
Thalland {group) 20,011 BT
Reussia (grou) 16,838 22478
South Africa (group) 15,702 T.517
Nanway (group) 12.835 B85
Poland {group) 5035 3215
Onhuer couniries (group) 10,420 B 782
Interes! recehad fram others 5ATA 1667
Tatal 131,888 83,518

5. Interest income

Intarest incoms 2018 P i

Lo} €000
Intefest ncorme on loans fo melated companies 122,089 78,666
Inbaresl Income on deposils. 1,564 g
Intarest {premium) income on commercial pape: 1242 B70
Inbarasl income an caliateral deposits paid 507 i
Iiibafas! incama an corporata tax 45 kX
Tatal 127 48T B0, 332
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The Company received a dividend from Teyota Leasing (Thalland) Ca, Ltd. of € 180,000 in the vear (2018

€ 43,000),

7. Guarantee fee income

The Company guarantees the debt of cestain other Toyota Motor Corporation subsidianes for which it receives
guarantes fee income. All guarantes fee income & from related parties, Guarantea fes income for the year

2019 was € 4,231,000 (2018: € 3,135,000).

B. Interest expenses

Intorest sxponses

Interest charge on Eure medium term notes
Intorest exponse on commoecial paper

Interest sxpants from bank bomawing

Intarast paid oo loan assats

Interest expanse on loans fom related companies
Interest expense on colaberal deposhs recedved

Intarast eompanent of fansign exchange dervative cantracts

Mol infovesd on swvap agroemanis

Takal

9 Fes expanses

2018 2018
©000 ]
(128,524) (96,675)
(48,770} [18,501)
{40,315 (21,523
1,288 {1,221}
- {1,218)

{31 (263)
37 3,010
112,007 81,006
(95,672) [55,113)

The Company has the benefi of credit support sgreements with Toyola Financial Servicas Corporation and
Toyota Modor Comparation, for which it pays credit support fees based on the Company's debl lssuance and
guaraniees issued to related parties. The credit support fees charged in the year by relaed partios wong

£ 13,431,000 (2018: € 8,898 000,

10.  Administration expenses

Administration exponsoes

2019 kil
€000 E000
(1,336) {1,241)
853 i721)
(315} (678)
B67) (815)
{238) (219
82 {160)
{197) (169)
{110} i1om)
1128) (&N
(13} {21)
1577) (5at)
{1 -

{1}
15,32%) 14,811)

The Company had an average of 10 employees, 2 seconded and B local (2018 10 employeas, 2 seconded

and 8 local) during the year,

Siafi costs consist of the following expenses and include ihe payrell costs of seconded employoes:

Qther assurance services consist of fees pald to PricawaternouseCoopers, EY and Deloifle for Comfon Latiars
redating 1o tha isulng of Eure medum term notes, Alse included under olher assurance services ane fees paid
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TOYOTA MOTOR FINANCE (NETHERLANDS) B,

to PricowatarhouseCoopers Aarata {Japan) for translation servces provided in franslating the Comfor Lotters

and accompamying documents,
Staff cosis Fid k] 2018
€000 Lo ilii]
Wagas, salaries and bonuses (on sccrusle basls) {1200 {1.021)
Sesial sacusily asts {78y ()
Pensica premiums (definad pension schomie on nocrunls baais) (L1 [48)
Todad (1.336) {1,241)

Wages, salaries and bonuses (on accreals basis) include rermuneration of key managemant, The table balow
consist of all paymants and berefits 1o directors of the Company

Compenaation to hey management 2018 018

€000 €000
Shait-taim emplayes banefits {265} 27}
Tatal (265} (271}

11.  Net gains [ (losses) on financial instruments

Met gains and losses arise from both foreign exchange rate movements and froen inferest rale movements on
the fiolfowing catagories of inanclal Instrurmens:

Nat gaing § {lossoee} on financial Instruments 2019 2016

Gaiins | {losses) arising from forelgn exchangs rate movemants

Financial instruments 353,635 (548, 838]

Deabt instruments at amanised cost 98,561 (2d8 562)

Financial kabilties monsuned at amatised oast [463,009) 708 152
&7 (58]

Gains [ (losses) arising from intarest rate movernents

Fair value goins f (losses) on fnancial nstrumants o 2 (25, 441)

Tatal m,218 {25,70)

The Company lssues debl io third parties and loans to related parties in a number of currencies. and then
swaps this borrowing and londing back into one of four funding books: US Dallar (USD), Pound Stedng (GBP),
Japanesa Yen (JPY) and Euro (EUR).

The effect of forsign mchangs rale movements on the market value of the financial nstruments is offset by
aqual and opposite exchange losses or gaine on the undarlying financial assets and Eabsiies. The net gains
and losses ansing from fereign axchangs mate movernents arise from the Company's net foreign exposune i
GBP, USD and other currancies.

The Company measures derivatives at fair value whangas the other financial assefs and Habllities are measuned
al amadtisad cosl. The Company does not apply hedge accounting. Therefore, the effect of inlerest movemants

on the market value of the financial instrements is not offset by an apposile mowement on the underfying
finarcial assets and Fabilities leading to volatility in the Statemant of comprehensive income.

18
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TOYOTA MOTOR FINANCE (NETHERLANDS) B.Y.

Tha result an financial instrumants improved from € 26 700,000 lossas far the year ended March 2018 o

€ 36,218,000 gains for ihe year ended Masch 2019, was caused by (1) the decrease in interes| rates for the
funding currencies (AUD, NZD, USD) more than the decregse in operations) curencies being hedged (EUR,
GBF). and (i) the reversal of previous losses kv dervatives coming 1o matwrity during the parlad.

12. Independent auditor's expenses

Administration expenses include the following fees paid to the Company’s indepandent auditors EY for the

siatutorny audit;
Independent auditor's expenses 2014 2018
€00 €000
Audit {atahdory) — EY (130} (145
Audit = olisar a8surancs darvices - EY 1107 T4y
(238) (218)
13, Taxation
Taxati 2018 208
€ana €000
Current
Taxation an prafil (loss) for the year 16.858) {4,547
Pricr poricd Lao adjustmant ] 548
5,747y (4, 008)
Dufarmad
Originaticn / reversal of timing differencas 8,707} 8,361
Total {156,464} 2,352

The tax on the Compaiy's resill balone lax difers fiom the amounts that would arlse using the walghted
average statulory lax rate applicable to the resall of the Company as follows:;

Recancillation of tax charge 2018 2018

€000 €000
Riesult badone tax 52,388 [11.845)
Weighted average tax rate for the year 24.93% 24.99%
Tax calculated al weighted average tax rabs appicakin [13.0640) 2,545
Change in bax rates aa defemad lax balances (27} 18
Irmacovarable withkolding tax {3.322) {1.170)
Tasable oxpensa (1) {1}
Mor-taxable income 47 11
Prior pariod tax sdjustrent 205 546
Total (15.454) 2,352

The current tax rate is 25% for calendar year 2019 (2018: 25%) in the Metharlands.

1
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TOYOTA MOTOR FINANCE (METHERLANDS) BV,

14. Loans to related companies

The Coempany lends fo olher Toyola Motor Corporation subsidiaries on both & fleed rale and a oating rate
basie. Al fived rate lending (with tenors longer than s mantha) is swapped inta three manth Boating basis in
line with the Company’s risk management policy,

The currency of mslaled party lending is determined by counerparty demand and then oither funded directy
from one of four main funding books (USD, GBEP, JPY @nd EUR) or swapped back ino the appropriate funding
currancy using a malching currency swap.

Under IFRS 8 the Company has deveoped an imgairment model for financial assets. The model is an expecied
credit loss model applicable as of 1 Apdil 2018. The expecled credit logs is caleulsted over all oulstanding loan
assais (curent and non-current), The total cafculated amount is deducted from outstanding cunmen loan assets,

Auditad Adjusted Audited
Currant loans to relatod companies 2019 2018 208
€000 €008 €000
Current assets
Loars to relabed comgpa nies 4,553 303 3,780,637 3.750,637
Expected crudi loss (1010} 77} -
Curent loans to related companies 4 R8E 183 3,749,520 3,750,637
Audibed Adfusted Audited
Loans lo related companies. 019 2018 2018
€m0 €000 €000
Cuerand leans 8o related companies 4,558,163 3,740,820 3,780,637
Men-current kaars to relatesd compankes BB, 06e) 4,890,423 4,950,433
Total 11,413,289 B,740,353 B.Td1,070
Movamant in oxpecied credil less €000
At 1 Agrl 2018 M
Additiomal provision (293
At 31 March 2018 i1.210)

In accordance with |FRS 9, the entine portfolio of financial assets are classified as stage 1 given the
craditworthinase and paymant history of tha related companies. Furthar, all curent year movament i the ECL
relales to addifonal reserve based upon an updated ECL calculation from tha increass In the lean balance,

Mo related party loans ane overdue and there has been no actual impairment of related party loans eithar in tha
currant ¢ previcas financial years, Thers has been no renegotiation of any loans thal would eiherwize have
bodn past dus or impained.

Ireres! rales on group lending can be sither fivad or floating. The Interest range for group bending an 31 March
2019 was batween {0.255)% and 9 36% per annum, depending on the currency of the loan.

Outside the calculated sxpected cradit loss no other impaiment provisians of losses have boen incurrad in the
curterl af previous financial year for eny class of financial assels
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TOYOTA MOTOR FINANCE (NETHERLANDS) BV,

15,  Equity investment - related company

Tiwa Company owis 0.047% [2018; 0.047%) of the ssued share capital of Toyota Leasing (Thailand) Co. Lid,
{TLT"), a company domiciled in Thaland, TLT has issued share capital of 51.4 milllon shares (face vatue 1,000
Thai Baht (THE) par share). Of the registerad share capital of THE 51,400,000.000, THE 15,100,000.000 is
Fully peid up. The original cost of the investment in 1997 was € 750,000,

Management has assessed the fair value of the imvestment in TLT wilh reference o discowed cash Bow
modeling of TLT assets and liabilites, ang by applying the current markat interest rales and sxchange rales
prevaiing an 31 March 2019, The investment in TLT shares at the reporting date is measured of fair value
The valuation of TLT, althowgh usirg third-party market data, & subject to management judgemant whan
assessing tha probalde cash Nows from the current asset base. The investment in TLT |2 classiied as a level
3 investment as shown in Mole 331,

Imvestment in Toyeta Leasing (Thailamd) Co. Lid, 2019 2018

@00 €'000
Balance af the st of yaar 1,118 1,118
Fair walul aduistiaen 104 i
Total 1,223 1,119

16. Derivative financial instrumonts

The defivative inandial instrumants ara categorised as camed at fair value through profit of loss. Tha fair values
of derivative contracts are showrn in the table below, Additional disclesures are set out In the accounting poficles
relating to risk management.

Derivative financlal instruments: 018 2018
Currant assets €000 0
Intanest saaps. =} 129
CrmEs-cumancy AWARS 245,519 53,420
Fonward Tareign cirmency contrads 4211 4,212
Tatal currant assats 250,718 57,761
Derivative financial instramants

Hon-gurrent assats i
Inberes swaps 17,634 1,755
CrOss-CUrmency Swaps 132,815 145, 480
Total non-currant assets 150,545 148,235

Darivative financial instrunvents
Totsl sssots 404,287 205,008

a1
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TOYOTA MOTOR FINANCE (NETHERLANDS) BV,

v

Dwrivative fnancial instnemants e 28
Currant llabilities €000 €000
Inbanast avwaps 1.828 1,891
Crosa-CLumneny S 44,806 BAATT
Fonward fomign cumency conlracts 924 Jas
Tatal current labilities 47 86D 81,283

Derhvative financial instrumants

Man-curreni Eabilities

Enlefea] swaps 20,935 3437
Crass-curmency swags 74 853 283640
Total non-currend liabliitios A6, 489 267,077

Darivativa financial instruments
Total liahikties 143,088 348,340

Dervative assets and liabilibes ane recognised af fair value through the income statement.

In accordance with IFRS 8, *Financial instruments. Recognition and measurement”, the Cempany has reviewsd
all contracts for embedded dedvatives and found there ane none. Derivative assets and liabiities ae recognised
at fair value throegh the incoma siatement. The majodity of dedvative contracds have collatorsl agroomants
attached. Therefore, the debitferedit valuation adjusiment is not considered material and |s not considered (n
delarmining the fair valug of derivative assets and labllities

Property, plant and equipment

Proparty, plant and aquipmant e 2B
Computer hardware Camputer hardware
and office equipment and office eguipmaont
£ona €000
Cost
Cast hifwd at 1 Apel 2008 2017 82 -¥]
Ackditions 13
Disposals Z
Todal s B2
Depreciation
Deprecation biwd at 1 April 2018 / 2017 [.r] -4
Dwpreciation chasge for the year 1
Déspoasls x =
Total a3 &2
Reconciliation at the beginning and end of the year
Dpening nel book amount - at 1 Apil 2018 4 2017 - -
Closing net book amount « at 31 March 2018 / 2018 12 -
22
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TOYOTA MOTOR FINAMCE (METHERLANDS) BV

18.  Intangible assets

Intangible assets b 018
Computer Computer
sadbwane saftware
€000 £'000
Cost
Coet bfwd at 1 Agrt 201842017 g b
Addeions L 17 :
Tatal L] B
Amartisation
Amonisation bAwd &l 1 Apnl 20187 2017 ] ]
Amaoriisation charge lor the year 1
Disposats. f -
Tatal 18 5

Reconciliation ot the boginning and end of the year
Opening net book amoun - &t § April 2016 § 2047 . o

Cloging not book ameunt - al 31 March 2018 1 2018 16

15. Deferred tax

Cefered tax is provided in full on temporary differences under e balance sheet iabilty method, using the
current tax rabe of 26.0%, The tax rélas apply o calendar years.

The calculation of the expecied credit loss, as siated in nole 14, had a reverse impact, against the cument fax
rate of 25%, on the balance as of 31 March 2018 and 21 March 2019 of defemed tax assels,

The movament on the daferred 1ax account (& shewn below:

Daoborred tax Auditod Audjustod Audited
g bl 2018 218
€000 1] €004

Deaferrad tax bitwd 1 Aprl 2098 4 2017 1,829 4,711 T

Impact from expeched chadil loss adusiment Nabe 249 T3 178

Fair waluafion of assets and linbifties through (5,783 6,381 0,381

oraft or loss

Tatal (7.0} 1428 1,680

Deferred tax assets (lablitles) have been recognised for all tax gains {losses) and othar temporary differancies
aiving nse to defermad lax assets (Rabifios), because it is possible that these assets (liabilites) will crystallise,
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TOYOTA MOTOR FINANCE (NETHERLANDS) B V.

20,  Other rectivables

Cthar recalvables 2019 2018

€000 000
Depasil far ranbed propsity 38 m
Préspaiid fisnt 33 rd
Colialeral deposits paid 7,100 237000
Interast recaivakis (cash coliateral pested) =] g
Oithar recedvabie &3 .
Ratabed party rectivabies Mot 30 2300 1,787
Non-felated party receivables B4 n
Financial guaranies recavabls Note 24 Basd AU
Tatal 58,243 246,327

Colipteral deposits paid ore cash doposits with dervative counterparties held as collateral in respect of
daerivalive confracts. The fair value of those deposis approximstes the camying amount.

21. Current taxes

Current 1axes ane charged Based on the prevailing tax rates. The tax rates apply o calendar years and praf
for the accounting year is therefore pro-rated between the bvo calendar years on a day-count basis 1o compuia
tha effective tax rate. The curment tax rale is 25.0% for calendar year 2019 (20718; 25.0%) in 1he Netherlands
Corporation tax liability at 31 March 2019 is € 584,000 (201 8: € 1,200,000, The to: payments are made during
the year in which the profits are eamed on an estimated basis. The exient to which the final texabla charge
differs from the original estimated arount resuits in a current tax aeset or lisbility due 1o over or under paymmen
of i respecively.

22, Cash and cash equivalonts

Cash and cash equivalents i L} 2ma

€000 €000
Cash and bank balancas 5812 4,560
Dpasits bar liquidty purpases 236,451 122,088
Dverdmdt e} {1
Total 242,260 126,633

As of 31 March 2019 thene are no restrictions on cash and cash equivalents.

13, Bomowings

Barrowings 019 08 18 018
Currant Hon- Current Hon-

current earrant

€004 €000 €00 o

Ceommercial papar 2424878 - 2,453,047 -
Medkim tamm notes 2,738,851 4 580,020 1. 181,568 1754 105
Loans payable bank 405,639 1,336,057 200,935 1,165,287
Total 5,669,318 B 228,677 1,836 442 4,520,462
o4
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Borrowings by currency

Paund Stering
Uniled Stat=s Daltar
Ausstralian Doliar
HNorw Zoatand Dollar
Euwra

Dibar

Tatal

Baorrowings

Commercial paper
Start
Accrued Inberas)

Radampeion
Amoriaation
FX rewvaluation

Tetal

Madium tenm notes
Stant

Bccrued irarsal
Issue

Redemplion
Amorisation

FX ravaluaten

Total

Loans fram relatod companies
Sast

Aconsed inberes

t=sum

Rodarmpsan
Fi revaluation

Total

Loans bank
Star

Accrued inferost
IssLe
Recampticn

FX revalaation

Tatal
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i 1] 2018 2018 2018
Cufrant Mon- Currant M-
currant current

€000 €000 00 E'000
1,451,577 110,352 1,601,670 404 TEY
2,831,756 1914182 1. 499,026 2,345,706
405 881 687 AR5 102,785 1,1808.538
226 B35 154,183 236,744 375800
463,205 1,988,510 306,167 01,5580
284 733,695 -] 0416
5,569,138 5926677 3836 448 4,920 462

@1 Apr. 18 = 31 Mar, 19

o1 Apr. 1T = 31 Mar. 18

€000 000
2453547 1,504,171
2818 aiz
30,430,393 22450429
(30,524, 261) {21,457 527)
2ra gi3
61,708 [44.971)
2424 870 2453947
483873 4112853
7.088 018
3,321,575 2812695
(8,191,597 {1 467, 358)
10,307 13,660
245,738 (338.113)
7,328,841 4,935,731
o 332,587
- {51t
. (380.581)
- {1,506)
o [:]
1,367,232 1,211,120
1,118 656
465,203 553,085
(214, 350) {207,348)
i 413
120,733 {190.710)
1,742,206 1,367,232
25
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Ther Company’s principal borrowings are from shor-term commercial pager programmes, a medum lemm nole
programma and leng-term bank borrowing. Commercial paper is a short-lerm debt instrumant normeally issued
at a dizcount and repaid af tace value. The Company can issue commercial paper with maturities batween 1
day and 364 days. Inlorest rates bank bomowings are fixed or floating (based on the relevant three maonths
Libor pus spread). The interest range bank borrowings on 31 March 2019 was botween 0.08 % and 3.4257 %
per annum. As &l the 31 March 2018 there are current bomowings of £5 568,338 000 (2018: € 3 235 448 000)
and non-cunent bormowings of € 5828 677,000 (2018; € 4,920,452,000)

24, Financial guarantes liability

The currénl value of guarantess oulstanding ks: € 8812000 (2018: € 7.431,000) and these relabe only o
guarantees isauad (n respect of debt issuance for ather related group companies (see note 2).

OF the tolal guaranteed amaunt, € 712 (00 relates to bonds maturing in kess than one year and & 7,900,000

relates lo bonda maluning in greater han one year

28, Other liabilities and accrued expensaes

Oither Rabilities and actrued expenses

Coflaternd deposits roceived
intenast payabia on coliaiersl depasils

Hote 30

s Pl
€000 €000
264,700 £6,600
1 44

7.535 5525
805 =0
183 130

: i

277 624 62,080

Collateral deposis received ane cash deposits from derivativa counterpartias held ae collateral undar derfvative

conlracts,

26, Capital managomont

Tt Company's intemnal objectives when managing capital ane:

] To safeguard tha Company's abllity to continue as a going concem, so that it can continue 1o provide
relums for shareholders and benefits for other stakoholders; and
g To provide an adequale return o the Company’s primary shareholder, Toyola Financial Serices

Corporation, by pricing products and sandces commensurately with fhe leval of sk

During the financial year 2010 the Company’s eapltal management strategy romaed unchanged from the
financial year 2018 and was fo operaie profitably and io add to retained resenves

The Company has compled with intemmal capial requirements by maintaining adequate capital during the year.

IT.  Share capial

Sharo capital

Authorised

10,000 (2018 10,000) ardinary ahares of € 454 sach

Issuad amd fully paid up
2,000 (2018: 2.000) ordinary shares of € 454 sach

29 Zma
000 €000
4840 4,540

‘908 808

100% of the share capital of the Company ks owned by Toyota Financial Services Corporation {ses natad),
2
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TOYOTA MOTOR FINANCE (NETHERLANDS) BV

Appropriation of Profit

The loss fur the financial year 2018 was deducied from the retained eamings as agreed in tha Annual
General Meeting of Sharehalders held in Amsterdam on 24 July 2018

The Board of Management proposed that the profit for the past financial year 2019 be added 1o the rotained
EErﬂlﬂﬂs.

28,  Retained carmings

The calculation of the expacted credit loas and the impact on deformed tax assets had the foliowing result on
the opening balance of retained eamings

Adjusted Audited
Ratalned sarmings 3 March 3 March
20148 2018
€000 €000
Refaingd eamings 144 T34 14,734
Expecied cradh loss adjustiment [ea k)] -
Derderred tax agjustmant 178 -
Relained samings 144,196 144,734
208, Equity instruments FYOCI - movement
Falr walus resarve €000
ALY Apiil 2017 a6
Movement
Unreaksad gairs on equity instrumants FUOCI 4
Al 31 March 2018 354
Unrealsad gairs on equily instruments FUOCH 104
ot fair value reserve al 31 March 2015 458

The fair vahsation reserve arizes from the falr valuation through equity of egquity investments and the related
defemred taxalion on the fair valuation adustment.
0. Related-party transactions
Parent and ultimato contralling pary
The Company is a wholly-ownad subsidiary of Tayola Financial Services Corporation (TFSC), a company

incorporated in Jagan, The ulimate management coeenpany and contralling party ks Toyota Moter Corparation
{TMC), m company incarporated in Japan,
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TOYOTA MOTOR FINANCE (NETHERLANDS) B.Y.

Transactions with parent company

During the year TFSC provided credit support o the Company in respect of debit lssieance In the capital markats
and redated pary gueraniees. The fees charged were € 13,431,000 (201 8; € 9,688, 000) with € 7,181,000
:{201 B: € 5,345,000 eulztanding al year-and, The oulstanding amount bears no intarest and the paymant term
5 30 days,

Fellow subsidiaries

Dhiring the year transactions were entered Into with the following TMC subsidiaries:

Toyota Financlal Services (UK) PLC, as well as its subsidiaries and associaled underiakings:

Toyola Financial Sanices (UK) PLC subsidianes:
Tewola Finance Findand Oy

Toyola Financial Services Czech s.r.o.

Toyota Financial Services Slovakia s.re

Toyola Financial Servicss Denmank A5

Taoyota Financial Sarvices Hungary R1.

Toyola Financial Sensces (Ireland) DAC

Toyeta Financial Services laly Spa,

Toyota Financlal Sandces (UK) PLC associaled underakings:
Toyola Financi@ Services [South Africa) (Proprietary) Limed

Toyola Kreditbank GmbH, as well as wih fis branches and subsidianios:

Toyota Kreditbank GmbH branches;
Toyola France Financement

Toyeta Financiad Sorvices Norway
Toyota Financial Services Sweden
Toyota Financial Sendoes Spain
Toyola Kreditbank GmbH subsidiaries:
AQ Toyola Bank

Toyota Leasing GrbH

Toyota Bank Polska 54,

Toyota Leasing Polska Sp.2 0.0,
Toyata Leasing (Thaand) Co. Lid
Toyota Financial Services Korea Lid

Toyata Maotar Credit Comoration
Toyota Capilal Malaysia Sdn. Bhd.

Transactions with fellow subsidiaries

Guarantees

The Company eamed € 4,231.000 (2018: € 3,135,000 frem fellow subsidianes as guaranioes foes, The
armount reating o the guaraniee fees thal ramained unpaid 3¢ pear-end was € 2,293,000 (2018; € 1.TET,000),
Thei outstanding amount bears no inferest and has not been impaked.

Dividends

The Company recaived € 190,000 (2018; € 49.000) in dividends as disclosed in note 6 on its unsted investmeant
in Toyota Leasing (Thailtand) Co. Lid.

Barrawings
The movermen in the Company's borrowings from fellow subsidianes during the year are shown below. A121

March 2018, there was no barrewings from related companios. Reference is made to note 23 for the terms and
conditions of the borrowings
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Balance st the beginning of the year

Leans recained during the year

Loans repaid during the year

Inberest exponsa

Intarast paid

Exchiange revaluation of loars from related companies

Totnl

Lending

2018 2018
£'000 €000
[V 382,507
. {380 581)
. 1,216
= {1,726)
~ {1.508)
0 o

The summary of laans 1o fellow subsidianies and the income and expenses incurred thareon during the yaar is

sl oul bafow

Loanes to related companies

Balance at the beginning ol the year

Loans advanced during the yoar

Loans recoived

IPiieest insoomsg

Iriteres! pcsioad

Irieres! expense

Irterest paid

Excharge revaheation of loans to ralated companies

Total

2018 018
€000 €000
8,741,070 7,317,966
12,658,782 7,807,768
{10,126 457) (6,448 963)
122069 78,685
(113,373) {76,300}
{1,288) (1221
1,358 1,131
1EOTT [37.88T)
11,814,268 B.741,070

Other than the calculated expected credit loss no impairmant has basn recagrised on Be amounts oulstanding
al year-end (see nole 14), Transactions with related companies are at arm's length prices.

Dirootors
There were no changes in the Board of Managament during the year,

Tranaactions with directors, management and employeos

There were no fransactions, ather than emoluments. with diseciors, managemant or employeas during the year,

Summary of related party payables included in other liabilities

Summary of related party payablos included in othar liabilitios

Credit support lees payable to parnl company

Business and edminstration senvices payable lo related companies

Total
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Summary of guarantees and related parly receivables

Summary of guaraniees and related party recebvabl 018 2018

€000 €000
Refaled party receivables for guaramioss 2203 1,787
Tatal 2,282 1787

Amounts receivable from related parties have not bean Impaired

3.  Contingant liabilities

The Company ssues guaraniees (o debt haiders of othar Toyota Motor Corporation subsidiaries, The Company
feceives guarantes fees from Toyota Molor Corporation subsidanies In respect of the guaraniced debt In
issuance

The Company assesses tho naad for provisions by reviewing the net assels and piohitability of the companies
for the year anded 31 March 2018, The accounis of the respective debd issuers indicate that there are adequale

assets to cover the bamawings.
No provisions have been regused against conlingent liabilites in either the current or prior fiscal years.
St out belaw is the Euro eguivalent of the guaraniees issued in relation to debt issuance by other Toyota

Motor Corporation subsidiaras
Contingant Habilites as at 31 March e 018
Currency of debt guarantsed €000 €000
Malaysian Ringgt 1,807 24156
Russlan Rubds 108,556 70051
Soulh African Rand 403,112 424 115
Thii Bakt 2205 g8 1,670,807
Total 2,768,183 2,150,133

The natura of the guaraniaes ks that thiy are unconditiona] guarantees issued to the debt hodders. I for any
reason the issuer is unable (o pay as and when the debt falls due, the Company may be reguined 10 repay the
dabt on behalf of the issuar. The guarantees are for commercial paper and medium-term notes,

32, Financial risk management
321 Financial risk factors

The Company's principal activites afe the lending of funds to ciher subsidiaries of Teyota Financial Serices
Corporation {the parent company) and acting as a guarantes vehicls for thind party debts of other related
companies within the Toyola Mobor Gorporation group.

The Company’s role as a financing vehicle for Toyofa related companies exposes i to a varaty of financial
risks that inchede credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk and forelgn currency exchenge rate risk. The
Company has in place a risk managemant program that sesks bo limél the adverse effects on the financal
performance of the Company of those nisks by malching foreign currency assets and lisbiities and through the
use of fnancial instements, including interes! rate swaps, cross-curmency swaps and foreign currancy
contracis, o manage intarast rate and foreign currency nsk.

In respect of the eredit risk ansing from the markel values of derivabve contracts o manage market risks,
agreemants ane concluded te exchange collateral with countarpartses 1o mitgate those cradit fsks The Board
of Management wilizes a sk managamen palicy and recoives ragular reparts from the business 1o enable
preampt identifcation of financial risks so thal appropriate actions may be teken. The Company employs writtan
polcios and procedures thatl specify guidelines for managing foreign exchange risk, intenest rate sk, cred
risk and the use of financial instruments 1o manage these nsks,

3
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Thi Casnpany has iransactions wiih related Toyota growp companles in Euro, other cominental Eurapean
currancies, South African Rand, Thai Baht, Pound Sterling and US Dollars. The Company aclively bormows in
anumbaer of currencies o meet investor demand for ite [zsued debt, The Company makes use of cross-curraney
swaps and forward foreign exchange confracts bo malch assets and iabfities into specific currency portfalios,
The net expasure results in the Company being exposad fo foraign exchangs risks primasity with raspect 1o

Pound Sterding and US Dollars.

The Company manages its exposure to foraign exchange rigk by ensuring that its hokings of financia! assots
and financial liabilities. are matched within each of its four funding currency portfofios, o ensure thal any mel
long or short positions. wilhen ezch curtency fall within lewels that mansgement considens acceptable,

The remaining net exposures al the reporing date wene as follows:

Mot exposure to forelgn sxchange risk

Pend Starking
US Diollar
Thai Bast
Cihar

Tatal

2018 2M8
€000 €'000
5,697 1,355
(2483 |2e)
1,588 1338
442 460
5,544 1829

The above exposure reprserts the present value of futune foreign currency cash flows discounted at market
interest rates ot the regonting date. The exposurs derives from the nel equity investment in the three main
foreign currency funding books that the Company wses to provide funding to related parties.,

The following sensitivity anelysis shows the impact on equity, theough both profit or loss and recagnition directy
in resenves, of 8 5% appreciation and depreciation in the value of the Euro against all ofher currencies a1 the

repartng date:
2019 2018
Sensitivity of Snsitivity of
Sensithvity Total Semsitivity Tatal
Protand | ey e
cuntam | TR | SO oumnmn | R | o)
o €000 |
5 % Ewro
sirengthening {208) (23 (231) {108} {18) {124)
5 % Euro
weakening 208 3 23 106 14 124
323 [Interest rate risk

The Company has both interest-bearng assels and inferezt-bearing liabiiities. The Company has a palicy of
maintaining assets and Babilities o Noating interest rates. The Company uses swaps, In respect of financial
aasets, including inter-company lending to manage risk. In respect of borewing, swaps are used to retain
floxdbility in the dabt capital markets. The imerest rate swaps are seitled on a bi-annual or quanerly basis wilh
payrnent or receipt of the difererce botwoon the agreed fived interest rate and the flaating inforest b

amounis an the pincipal,

Inberest rate risk in rolation to e Company's related party lending activities ts managed by ensuring that any
fiscd riabes funding is swapped into floating rate, with resst dates lypically of a three month duration. Inferest rate
risk in redation 1o the Company's bormawing activities is managad by ensuring that any fixed rate borrowing is
swapped o Noaling rale, wilh ress dates typically of a three month duration, As such, mavemant in tha
presvalling marke! rates will not have a matenal impael on Incame
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This ieres! rate profile broadly matches that of the Company’s intra-group koan assets, edhar camying varkabio
coupons with & threa manih re-pricing of, where fied for longer paniods, swapped into threa month floating
ralas.

The Company’s interest rate riak expoaure dedves from the following financial conbracts:

Intrest rabe risk exposure at Flxod Floating Han- Todal
31 March 2018 rabo raita Intarest.
boaring

000 E000 €000 [ il]
Non-currant assels
Loans to related companies 3512280 3,342 785 - 6,855 066
Equity investmen= melated company - - 1,223 1,225
Current assats
Logns bo related companias 1,640,114 3,018,085 . 4 858, 203
Recedvables friom affliated companies - - 2,283 2,283
Dihar receivablos
= financial instruments cnly £ 47,139 193 AT, 538
Cash and cash equivalents - 242 283 - 242 FE3
Currant liabilitios
cP - {2,424 878) H {2,424 BT
EMTH 1,113,088 11,625,723 - {2,736.821)
Bank loans (41 (405, 564) = {405 639}
Aiffiliabed compary accounds payable . - (7.935) (7,934}
Orthaar liabditios snd accrupd expansas - (268, 701) (o68) {358 G50}
-finarcial instruments only
Bark overdraft - (k)] - (R
Hon-curment Hablbties
EMTH {3,823,733) (766, 288) - {4, 590,020)
Bark loans {7e2, B35 {543,821} - {1,336, 657)
Pre-dehvative posisan (a) (B77,347) 616 298 (5,208} (56,255}
Meminal valse derkatives (b) 654,027 {338, 701) ] 258,708
Met interest beading assst | {labiity) {22 420) 215,658 (5224 191,954
position (a)+(b)

a2
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Interast rabe risk oxposune at Fizod Floating Kon- Total
31 Manch 2018 rals rato intarost
Bearing

€000 €000 €000 €000
Mon-cument nssets
Lanrs 1o mlated companies. 2662314 2,208,119 4 950,433
Egquity irvestment = relabed company - - 1.118 1.11%
Current assets
Lanns lo roloted companies. 1,520,220 2230407 * 3,750,637
Recebables from aféated companies - - 1,787 1,787
Other recedvablos
—financial instrumeants anky = LA 000 109 237,108
Cash and cash equivalents ! 126, 634 - 126,634
Current liabilities
cP - (2,453,947} - (2,452,947}
EMTN (365,560 (B16,006] - {1,181, 566)
Bank lpans 58y {200,879 . (200,935)
Loans fram related companies . B - -
Affillated company adcounts payabla - - (5,525} (5,525}
Other Eabilties and accrued sxpenses
- financial instrumants only . {58, B4d) (Taa) {57,374)
Bank oyerdraft . n : {n
Miof-currant FabiFies
EMTH (2,470 418) (1,283,747 - (3,754, 165)
Bank kaans {304 216K [862.081) & (1. 166,287)
Pre-dervative position {a) 1,032 784 pi1,135;| = (3,240} 287,909
Mamilnal valus deivatives (5] {571, 7186) B20.448 {76 (142, 344)
Wat intorest baaring asset | {iabdity) 50,568 88,313 3,318} 145,565
oesRian (aj ()

Shaet-term borrowing with an onginal term of less than 6 months s subject to regular interest rate changes on
replacament, tharafora, shor-tenm funding of this neture is classied as Noating sale funding in the above tablas.

324 Credit risk

Couriber gty expasune from inmstments, depasits and dervative financial investments is limited to financial
insfiutions with investment-grade credit ratings with more strngem raling theesholds for exposures in cxcess
of § years. The amount of exposure to any individual countor-party is subjoct to & imit, which is reassessed
ammupdly,

The Company is exposed 1o credd risk from its achvites as a lender and guarantor of Toyota Motor Corporation
operating companios’ thind party debts in various geographical locations. While the Company's primary credit
risk exposire is defaull by the related companées to which H lends or isswes guarantees te third parties, this
risk is mitigated by crodit support agreemants with its parent and witimate parent company, whereby they have
undestaken to the debi and guarantee holders to maintaln the equity of the Company at a specified lavel, The
Moody's credit rating of the parent a3 of 31 March 2019 ks Aad.

In addition, the Company’s lending and guarantee activity is to significant operating entities as pant of the
Toyota group, and therefare (he Company's confinuing trading viability is ullimately dependant upan the irading
parformance af fe Toyota Motor Corporation group as 8 whole. Lending |s on an un-suborndinsed basis, but
there aro instances where loans are subordinated to asaist in masting regulatory funding requirements of (he
beTOwer.
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Derivatives enfered into by the Company exchusheely to manage its intenest rate and currency risk are fraded
salely wih recognised crodil institutions with credit ratings as detailed above. Fair value mavement in the
derivative Rability does not materally partain bo credit rsk,

The Cormpany's cash and cash equivalents are hedd with a sslection of banks from a kst approved by Tayola
Financal Sanvices Corporation within spacified limits.

The maximum exposune to credit risk from financial instruments at the reporting dete s &5 foliows:

Credit risk Fish ] 2018
€000 €000

Current assois

Leoans io refaled companies 4,558,203 3,750,537

Oilhvar receivables

= Cellateral doposits paid and ralaled

party recahiabies 44,631 238,508

Derivativs fnancial instrumaonts 250,718 5T, 761

Cash and cash aquivalenis 242 263 126,534

Hon-current assats.

Loans %o related companies 8,855,068 4,900,433

Durivatva financial instrumants 150,545 148,235

Contingent liabilites
Guaraniees of related padty debt Z.769,183 2,180,128

Agreements to exchange collateral in cash have been concluded with counerparties fo miligabe the credit risk
arieing from the value of dervative financial instruments shown abowe, A 31 March 2019, the value of cash
codateral receved, shown as Collateral deposits received in note 25 within Other liabilties and accrued
expansas was, € 268,700,000 (2014: €56 600,000).

Details of the Cantingent Rabiities are shown in note 31,

The mamimum s expasurs from desvalive assois at the repoding dafe to a single counterparty is
€ 84,500,000 (2018: € 26,301.000) and the 3 largest counterparty posiblions represant € 141,100,000
(2018; € 46,228 000). These counterparties exposures are collatessed,

325 Liquidity risk

Liguigily risk is the risk Ut the Company is unabile (o mest payment obligations associated with its Erancial
liahifiies when they fall due.

The Company regularly forecasts short and medium-tarmn funding requiremants incorporating information from

olher relafed companies and ensures thal there [ an approprisle level of liquid resowces to cover any
unfareseen cash reqguirements,

The Company actively maintaing a mixdure of long-tarm and shart-lenn dobl matuities, ogethet with lang-term
commitied fasiities and liguid invesimenis that are designed to ensure the Company has sufficiant available
funds for aperations. The Company maintains committed credit nes with & syndicate of commercial banks 1o
mitigate the lguidity rigk. In additien, the Company has enlered into a credit support agreement and a
supplemiental credit suppodt agraemen with its pareni company in which i will make sufficient funds availabla
1o the Company 5o that the Company will be able 10 service the ohligations ansing oul of 28 capital manke
bomowing and guarantes obligations respeciively.

The credit support agréemant and the supplemental credit support agreemant provide for larmination by either
party upon 30 days’ writlen nolice to the other party. Such terminations will not take effect untll or unless all
relevant securties have been repald or sach relevant rating agency has confirmed fo the parent company or
the Company that the debl ralings of all relevant sacurities will ba unaffected by such termination.

The following tabla details the expected maturity of non-dervative finoncial liabilitics. The arafysis ia based on
gross confraciual (undsscounted) cash fiows payable. Foreign cumency cash flows included in the table below
have been translated using market mies. Where future Inlerest payments are variable, the cash fiows are
based on the interest rale index a1 the reporting date,
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Debt cash Mows at
31 March 2018

Bank bomoaings
Commeacial papsi

EMTH

Colateral deposits rscahed

Tatal

Dbt cash flows al
31 March 2018

Bank bomrwings
Commecal paper

Colateral depoads racalved
Tatal
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Due within Duo Dusa Dup after
3 manths babaoan Etvndan 5 yoars
4 and 12 1 and 5
muonths yoans

€00 @000 €000 €000
9542 425,352 1,964,521 -
1284128 1.178,737 - i
T4 711 F0B4 405 &, THOETZ
268,700
2,311,081 1,680 454 6,114,753 -
Due within Due Duwm Duo after
2months E Loty 5 yrars
& and 12 1and §
manths pears.
€000 000 €000 €000
7835 224,808 1.218.810 -
1,728,811 T14,9%55 * -
333298 1,101,878 JEIRALH -
2,137,842 2,040,788 5,048 288

Thi following tabde detals the capected misturity of derivative financial instruments. The analysis is bazed on
the gross contractual (undiscounted) cash fiows. When the amound payable of recaivable is nol fixed, the
amoun! discipsed has bean determined by reference fo current market indicas at the reporting date.

Mot cash flows at
31 March 2019

Mot seitied
—  Inferes!  darvatves
recahvalile)

Groas sottiod:

— Cumeney dirlvalives — rectivabls
— Gumency derlvatives — payable

Tatal darvative cash floss

Total
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Do within Diso D Dun after
3 months batwean batwean § yoans
4 and 12 1and§

maonths yoars
€000 €000 o 0o
1,883 2144 .63
{1,258 g5 {3,185 84T} {5,442 381}
1,214 585 3,006,685 5,358,213 e
{72,157} (157,018) (B1,B17)
4,233,524 3,531,476 6,033,218 -

oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0DO000DO000DO00o0Do00noOoO0noo(E20989)
oOoOooodn

TOYOTA MOTOR FINANCE (METHERLANDS) B.Y,

Het cash flows at DOue within Due Drue Due after
31 March 2018 3 months babwodn botwean & yonra

4 aid 12 1 and &

months years

€000 €000 €000 00

Hed setiled:
= Intanest samyaties payahle | [recaiehis) 2 2,770 8178 -
Geoss sedled
— Curmancy decivalives — receivable {1,208, 13&) {1.5407.974) (6,156, 124) -
— Cumency decivalives = payabia 1,218,075 1,930,083 6,115,384 -
Total darivative cash fiows 9,535 (65,121} (31,504 -
Total 2,147,581 1,976,647 5,013,565 -

The Company has exdended loan faclitios o related parties and (o the extent that these loan facilities are
undrawn at the reporting date this represants & future lending commitment.

Patential cash oulfiows from wndrawn loan facilities s the reporting date are shown in the teble balow af ihe
carlies! poasible draw cown date, The cash flow effect of probable future related party borowing reguinements
is monitored through regular cash flow forecasts providad to the Campany by the related parlies.

Undrawn commitments at Do within 3 Due Dug Due after
31 March 2018 manths batwoen bebwaen 5 years
4and12 1and §
manihs s
000 £'000 €000 L ] ]
Undrawn loan commitmants 4 117,883 . - "
Total 4,117,803 - - -
Uniirawn commibments at Due within 3 D Due Oup after
31 March 2018 manths beh ety & years
4 and 12 1and 5
months VOArs
€'000 @000 €000 £'o0n
Updrawn bban commiments 3,240 568 - - =
Total 3,240,588 E = .

328 Price risk
The Company is not significantly exposed 1o equity price risk or commodity price rsk.
327  Offaetting financial assets and financial liabilities

The fallowing Snancial instrumaents are subject 1o enforceabla mastar netting apreaments:
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3

As at Grass Gross Met Mot
31 March 2019 amaounts of amounts of collateral assats |
recognised recognised wxchangod {liabllities)
financlal financial
assols labitities
€000 €'000 €000 a0
Deerivatie Nicancial instrumeis 401,182 {143,068} (221, 6003 35531
Collalormtsed
Dermyatve financial instrumants
Naon- Coflsferalized 78 = - bi-|
Tatal 40,267 (143,058} (21,6000 36,810
As at Giross Gross Mat Mt
31 March 2018 amounts of amouns of collateral angets |
i recognised exchanged (lkabilities)
fimancial financial
assots Habliftkes
€0 E'n €000 €000
Darrvative financial instromants 208 581 (348, 3400 180400 38,021
Cofnderalized
Darrentive financial inatnaments 35 . - 35
Nov Colaleraised
Totsl 205,998 (348, 3800 180,400 18,056

Financial instruments are seltled on 8 gross basls, however, each party 1o a masier netling agreemean will
have the option to settie all such amounts on a nat basks in the event of defaal of the other party. All financial
insbuments on the Stabement of financial pesilion are shown on a gross basis.

Fair value of fimancial instruments

Fair value is defined as the price thet would be receved when selling an asset or paid when transfering a
liability in an ordarly transaction between markel paricipants at the measuremen] date,

Financlal assets and liabilities at fair value in the statement of financial position

Thia table helww analyses financial instruments carried ai fair value, by vauation method. The different lavels
have been defined as follows:
Level 1 - Quated prices (unadjusied) m ackive markets for idenbcal assets and Rabiities;
Level 2 - Inputs ether than guated prices includaed within level 1 that are cbsarvabla for the asset or liabllity,
edher directly {that is, as prices) or indirectly (that ks denved from prices);,
Level 3 = Inputs for the assl or liability thal are not based on obsarvable market data (that is, unobsarnvable
gt}
Level 2 rading and hedging daerivatives comprise forward exchange cantracts and interest rate swaps. Thesa
forwand foreign exchange contracts heve been fair valued using forward exchange rales that are quoled in an
active markel. Ineres! e swaps ane fair valued using forwand interest rabes from observable yield curves.

Management will continually assess whather its understanding of the valuation mathed hisrarchy rermasis
asccurate for each financial instrument and if a change is deemed 10 occur it will disclose the date of the event
and the changs in ciroemstances in addition 1o the reporting peried it is applicable to.

aF
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3 March 2019 31 March 2098
Level 1 I.mit Leval Total | Level Lowol | Level Tatal
3 1 r 4 3
000 €000 | €000 €000 | €000 000 €000 €000

Financial Assats
Equity instruments - = - 1,223 1,223 = - 1.119 1118
rebrled company
Dsivathia - 401267 B 401 26T - 205,998 - 205,508
fnanclal instruments
Financial Liabilities
Db - 143,058 - 143,080 - 348,340 = A 34D

finandial insirumants

Thare ware ne ransfers betwesan leval 1, bevel 2 and lovel 3, The camying vahee for all oiher financial asseis
and liabilities nod presented in the previous graph is & reascnable approximation of Fair Valua in sccordance
wilh disclosure requiramanis as staled wilhin IFIRS 7.

33.2 Financial assots and liabilities not moasured at fair value in the statomont of finanelal pasition

The following tables compare the carrying value and fair valug of those financial assets and liabilties nat
presenied on the statemen| of financial position at fair value.

31 March 2019 3 March 2018
Lawal 2 Lansal 2
Carrying Valus Fair value | Carrying Valus Fair valua
€000 €000 00D €000
Financlal asscts
Loans o related pariles 1413288 11,474 537 B.741,070 BB16,460
Guarantee foe recelvable B.812 Bz T4 7431
Financial liah@itlos
Loans payable bank 1,742 208 1,761,064 1,367,232 1,389,112
Commercial paper 2424 878 2,424 975 2453547 2453047
Euto medium berm nobes. T.323.841 7385774 4 938,731 4,951, 570
Relaled pany guaranise a612 B&12 7431 T431

Financial assots

Tha fair valus catculation for loans to related panties is based on discounting expectad fdure cash flows using
an estimated discount rate that rflects the expectad future inferesd rates, derived fram queded market rates at
the reporting date. Early setttements, cred? lnsses and credit sproad assumphions are reviewed pariodically,
bant currently ane not relevant to this class of assets.

Fimancial Rabilities

The fair value of borrowings & based on cument markel prices whers available, Fair value of EMTH is based
on the discounted cash fiow model that incomporates obsarvable inputs including intersst rate yield curves and
the appropeiate dscount rate for the cumrency and tanor of the cash flow. Whare sctive marked pricos are not
available, the fair value of fxed interest borrowings is basad on fulure cash flows discountad at the current
rabe for similar debis or assets with the same remaining maturities.
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34,

Events accurring aftor the reporting date

Qn 28 June 2019, Nr. K. Katayama resigned as director from the Board of Management of the Campany, at

which date Mr. T, Kawai was appointed as director. There are no further materlal events thal oocured alter
the raporting date to disclose

Baard of Management

Hiroyasu Iio

Tashiaki Kawai
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Cther Information

Retained Earmings
In accordence with Atticle 21 of the Anicles of Assotiation, retained eamings ae al the disposal of the
shareholder i the ganeral meeting, Subject to the Company being in a piofitabde position, the Board of

h'ma:wnent may decide 1o pay an interim dividend subjéct o the approval of the sharehalder in the general
meefing.

Independent Auditor's Roport
The independem auditors repart is =8t out on page 41

40
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25

€)) 30 18

) 30 30

®3) 30 31
29 13

[0 30 10
29 13

®) 30 22

(6) 30 25
29 13

@ 30 25
29 13

®) 30 25
29 13

Q) 30 10 11

(10) 30 10 11

(11) 30 10 11

(12) 30 12 21

(13) 31 30
29 13

(14) 31 13
29 13

(15) 31 19
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OooooOodd
)
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
( )| 27,234,521 | 28,403,118 | 27,597,193 | 29,379,510 | 30,225,681
( ) 2,892,828 2,983,381 2,193,825 2,620,429 2,285,465
( ) 2,173,338 2,312,694 1,831,109 2,493,983 1,882,873
( ) 3,294,275 1,517,486 1,966,650 2,393,256 1,936,602
( )| 17,647,320 | 18,088,186 | 18,668,953 | 19,922,076 | 20,565,210
( )| 47,729,830 | 47,427,597 | 48,750,186 | 50,308,249 | 51,936,949
() 5,334.96 5,513.08 5,887.88 6,438.65 6,830.92
() 688.02 741.36 605.47 842.00 650.55
() 687.66 735.36 599.22 832.78 645.11
() 35.2 35.3 35.9 37.2 37.3
() 13.9 13.8 10.6 13.7 9.8
() 12.2 8.0 10.0 8.1 10.0
( ) 3,685,753 4,460,857 3,568,488 4,223,128 3,766,597
( ) 3,813,490 3,182,544 2,969,939 3,660,092 2,607,241
( ) 306,045 423,571 375,165 449,135 540,839
( ) 2,284,557 2,939,428 3,149,326 3,219,639 3,706,515
) 344,109 348,877 364,445 369,124 370,870
[ 1 [ 85,848] [ 86,843] [ 86,005]| [ 84,731]| [ 87,129]|
)
2019
2017 2018
( )
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)
111 112 113 114 115
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
( 11,200,414 | 11,585,822 | 11,476,343 | 12,201,443 | 12,634,439
2,125,104 | 2,284,001 | 1,801,736 | 2,238,140 | 2,323,121
( 1,600,679 | 1,810,370 | 1,520,011 | 1,859,312 | 1,896,824
( 397,049 635,401 635,401 635,401 635,401
( 3,417,007 | 3,337,007 | 3,262,907 | 3,262,007 | 3,262,907
( _ 47,100 47,100 47,100 47,100
( 10,184,271 10,859,443 11,365,784 12,040,947 12,450,274
( 15,128,623 | 16,100,200 | 16,592,167 | 17,200,436 | 17,716,993
) 3,235.44 3,417.07 3,659.40 3,972.72 4,225.55
200 210 210 220 220
, ) o) ( 100) ( 100) ( 100) ( 100)
— 52 105 158 211
, ) « 5 ( 26.0) ( 52.5) ( 79.0) (105.5)
) 535.22 581.08 506.96 628.31 657.10
) 534.95 575.64 500.65 620.85 649.89
) 67.3 67.4 68.5 70.0 70.3
) 17.8 17.2 13.8 15.9 15.5
) 15.7 10.2 11.9 10.9 9.9
) 37.4 36.1 41.4 35.0 33.5
O 70,037 72,721 73,875 74,890 74,515
[ [ o047  [10,371)]  [10.700 [ 10,005) [ 11.122]|
D) 1473 109.2 114.3 131.6 129.5
( () (130.7) (116.5) (133.7) (154.9) (147.1)
TOP1X)
) 8,741 8,637 7,156 7,782 7,502
) 5,314 5,710 4,975 5,605 6,079
)
( 28 2018 16 ) 115
114
)
( )
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@
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
( ) 1,645,393 1,880,183 1,812,554 1,978,884 2,141,906
( ) 367,586 330,190 215,447 280,769 313,306
( ) 235,090 232,719 148,687 509,930 222,308
( ) 383,235 82,594 117,191 439,270 267,214
( ) 2,091,538 2,173,667 2,291,850 2,733,310 2,893,403
( ) 22,079,002 21,379,657 22,188,626 22,636,927 23,660,621

) 1,319,596.49 | 1,372,219.52 | 1,444,732.41| 1,721,667.31 | 1,816,366.85

() 149,691.36 |  148,181.83 94,674.94 |  324,692.91 |  141,552.90
() — — — — —
() 9.4 10.1 10.2 11.9 12.1
() 12.5 11.0 6.7 20.5 8.0
) — — — — —
( ) — — — — —
( ) — — — — —
( ) — — — — —
( ) — — — — —
) 9,463 9,670 10,172 10,364 10,634
) (1,380) (1,536) (1,548) (1,450) (1,540)
)
( 28 30 16 )
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@)

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
114,146 41,846 39,854 58,411 75,532
107,950 30,975 28,947 47,297 63,027
101,148 27,192 26,160 42,983 57,665
78,525 78,525 78,525 78,525 78,525
1,570,500 1,570,500 1,570,500 1,570,500 1,570,500
532,181 556,311 581,408 624,560 580,459
542,196 562,541 589,136 633,111 586,472
338,861.06 | 354,225.54 | 370,206.23 | 397,682.51 |  369,601.93
_ _ . . 63,674.00
(63,674.00)
64,405.56 17,314.84 16,657.31 27,369.48 36,717.92
98.2 98.9 98.7 98.6 99.0
21.0 5.0 4.6 7.1 9.6
_ _ — — 173.4
87 86 79 73 85
(14) 17) (18) (16) (14)

(

)
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( ) ( ) 100

2000

1982 ( )

1987 ( ) ( )
1988 ( )

(UK) (UK)

1989 ( )
1990 ( )

1993 « )

1996 ( )

1999 ( )

2000 ( )

2001 ( )

Seabanc GE

( )
2002 ( )

2004

2005 C )

2006 PT KDLC

2007 ( )

2008 ( )

2011 ( )

2013 ( )
2017

2018 ( )
2019 « )
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)
635,401 100
)
(
16,500 100
Plano, ( ) 100
Texas, U.S.A. 915,000 (100)
Plano, ( ) 100
Texas, U.S.A. 10,000 (100)
Markham, ( ) 100
Ontario, Canada 60,000
( )
Cologne, Germany 30.000 100
Amsterdam, ( )
( ) Netherlands 908 100
Epsom, Surrey, ( ) 100
(UK) United Kingdom 119,800
St Leonards, ( )
New South Wales, 120.000 100
Australia ’
( 86.8
Bangkok, Thailand (0'1)
15,100 )
3,100,000 100
45
)
Sandton, Gauteng, ( ) 33.3
South Africa 4,695 (33.3)
( )
3,746,104 33.3
5
( )
)
( )
10
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(D)
2019 31
)
1,977
3,370
1,215
3,987
C ) 85
10,634 (1,540)
)
( )
)
C )
@
2019 31
) ) ) C )
85 (14) 45.1 7.5 10,598
) )
( ) )
(©)
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( 28 30 16 )

@

&)

100

35
282
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ooooooo
1,419 1,630
2,818 321 3,133 325
2,223 2,876
755 171
615 168 630 157 576 146
« )
1,776 133
248 40
« )
4,907 1,178
1,328 221
« )
743 67 219
( )
3,991 250 1,049
126
23 6,606 236
9,543 18 4,646 693 1,959
20 7,672 8,636
4,205 10 2,868 4,430 10 4,803
8,934 1,600
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( ) (D)
1,627,806 5.5
13,470,340 5.0
1,275,603 20.2
5,346,897 7.5
21,720,648 6.4
()
( ) ()
177,645 8.1
1,490,781 8.6
74,354 10.0
399,125 6.7
2,141,906 8.2
(D)
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ooooooo
( )
2,147,433
2019 31
( ) )
4,494,000 100.0
4,494,000 100.0
2019 31
( )
)
1,948
959 | 11,442 388 | 12,789 Ga1)
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3
2019 31
( )

( ) )
(Plano 1,328 | 18,484 | 2,061 | 21,874 %éSéi
Texas, U.S.A.)

()
)
€y
(2019 2020 31 )
1,884,129
18,942
)
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(€))
)
4,680,000
4,680,000
)
1,570,500
1,570,500 — _
)
(©)
“4)
) ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
2004 15 ) 70,000 | 1,570,500 3,500 78,525 3,500 78,525
1,500,500 70,000 70,000
100,000
50,000
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)
(2019 31 )
()
) — ! — — — ! —
() —11,570,500 — — — 11,570,500 —
( ) —_ 100.00 —_ —_ — 100.00 —_
(6)
(2019 31 )
) (
) O
1,570,500 100.00
— 1,570,500 100.00
@
(2019 31 )
() ()
( _ — _
( — J— J—
( — — —
( 1,570,500 1,570,500 —
1,570,500 — —
- 1,570,500 —
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19 2019 63,674
)
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2019 18 100,000 63,674
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(
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1963
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2018

2018

2018

(

)

1962
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2018
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(

)

1961

1990
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2016

2016
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2018

2018
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23

1985
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2019

2019

(
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(

)

1948 10 23

1972

2001

2004

2007

2010

2015

2018

2018

2018

2018

2018

(

)

1957 12 26

1982

1998

2007

2012

2015

2017

2018

(

)

1963 10 19

1986

2015

2016

2019

1974 12

1997

2017 11

2019
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(D)

1980

2012

1957 24 2014 )

2018

1985
2018

1963 25 2018 )

2019

1991
2017
1968 2018 )

2019

2020
2020
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71 — 72 —
83 37 94 33
154 37 166 33
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@
( )
(2018 31 ) (2019 31 )
389,639 571,170
, 14,721,212 , 15,729,259
1,342,045 1,497,388
570,787 276,631
650,891 566,467
164,242 176,266
17,510,333 18,464,651
¢ ) : 4,350,779 . 4,494,000
9,262 9,474
4,360,042 4,503,474
38,017 36,884
468,002 365,419
260,530 290,192
728,533 655,611
5,126,593 5,195,969
22,636,927 23,660,621
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( )
(2018 31 ) (2019 31 )
919,723 1,130,702
) 1,629,396 ) 1,739,114
2,321,393 2,289,804
3,891,614 3,871,603
30,161 32,471
1,074,034 1,223,156
9,866,324 10,286,853
6,253,109 6,655,252
, 3,046,051 , 3,052,704
637,113 686,236
10,983 17,398
14,873 15,877
75,160 52,893
10,037,291 10,480,363
19,903,616 20,767,217
78,525 78,525
159,900 159,900
2,545,223 2,653,758
2,783,648 2,892,183
560 1,184
2,667 3,217
81,877 43,981
79,770 39,579
29,432 40,799
2,733,310 2,893,403
22,636,927 23,660,621
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( )
( 2017 2018

2018 31 ) 2019 31 )
1,978,884 2,141,906
1,325,249 1,435,668
653,635 706,237
403,990 424,429
249,645 281,807
1,042 —
3,658 3,651
24,939 25,606
2,433 3,002
32,073 32,350
732 298
— 234
216 318
949 851
280,769 313,306
361 _
361 —
— 5,535
— 5,535
281,130 307,771
66,089 53,897
298,860 27,196
232,770 81,093
513,901 226,678
3,971 4,369
509,930 222,308
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( )
( 2017 2018
2018 31 ) 2019 31 )
513,901 226,678
5,637 1,745
799 207
68,653 41,592
460 2,594
74,630 40,535
439,270 267,214
434,805 262,499
4,465 4,714
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2017 2018 a1 )
( )
78,525 159,900 2,035,293 2,273,718
509,930 509,930
— — 509,930 509,930
78,525 159,900 2,545,223 2,783,648
5,077 4,065 13,908 4,766 22,898 2,291,850
509,930
5,637 1,397 67,968 75,003 6,534 68,469
5,637 1,397 67,968 75,003 6,534 441,460
560 2,667 81,877 79,770 29,432 2,733,310
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2018 2019 31 )
( )
78,525 159,900 2,545,223 2,783,648
13,773 13,773
78,525 159,900 2,531,449 2,769,875
100,000 100,000
222,308 222,308
— 122,308 122,308
78,525 159,900 2,653,758 2,892,183
560 2,667 81,877 79,770 29,432 2,733,310
661 14,435
560 2,667 81,877 79,770 28,771 2,718,875
100,000
222,308
1,745 550 37,895 40,190 12,028 52,219
1,745 550 37,895 40,190 12,028 174,528
1,184 3,217 43,981 39,579 40,799 2,893,403

172/226




(

(

(

(

(

)

)

55

31

12 31

)

)

)

173/226

EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0DO000DO000DO00o0Do00noOoO0noo(E20989)
oOoOooodn



(

(

(

(

(

)

)

)

)

)

174/226

EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0DO000DO000DO00o0Do00noOoO0noo(E20989)
oOoOooodn



)
ASC 606

ASU 2016-01
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)
ASU 2016-13

2019 12 15

EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0DO000DO000DO00o0Do00noOoO0noo(E20989)

oOoOooodn

ASC 606

12,137

)

ASU 2016-01

1,380

IFRS
256

2021

175/226



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0DO000DO000DO00o0Do00noOoO0noo(E20989)

OooooOodd
)
( 28 30 16
)
73,237
260,530

23,789 637,113

32,772
) ( ) « )
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(2018 31 ) (2019 31 )
1,201,420 1,268,721
(2018 31 ) (2019 31 )
38,348 38,297
20,086 19,580
641 428
641 428
(2018 31 ) (2019 31 )
3,117,270 3,429,411
55,355 50,211
11,954 12,527
3,184,580 3,492,150
(2018 31 ) (2019 31 )
3,316,588 3,826,278
(2018 31 ) (2019 31 )
2,016,371 1,912,312
618,786 609,694
(2018 31 ) (2019 31 )
6,526 59,166
1,033,111 933,641
899,192 884,746
16,494 23,331
43,018 29,787
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(2018 31 ) (2019 31 )
1,906,199 1,793,475

(2018 31 ) (2019 31 )
1,830,019 1,745,592
618,786 609,694
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(2017 ( 2018
2018 31 ) 2019 31 )
88,143 88,982
99,850 97,736
(2017 ( 2018
2018 31 ) 2019 31 )
( )2,860 ( )23,414
(2017 ( 2018
2018 31 ) 2019 31 )
3,380 588
4,567 1,248
7,947 1,836
2,309 91
5,637 1,745
293 1,021
1,493 1,318
1,199 297
400 89
799 207
68,653 41,592
460 2,594
74,630 40,535
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OOooOoOoOoo
( )
(2017 2018 31
() 1,570,500 _ _ 1,570,500
(2018 2019 31
() 1,570,500 _ _ 1,570,500
(1)
( ) )
2019 18 100,000 63,674 | 2019 28 2019 19
)
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( )
( )
€))
(2018 31 ) (2019 31 )
580,852 648,817
421,497 478,293
79,856 99,535
922,493 1,027,576
@
(2018 31 ) (2019 31 )
151,267 169,741
131,782 150,937
108,781 121,974
48,564 49,295
14,990 16,266
1,706 1,573
(2018 31 ) (2019 31 )
218,521 248,718
166,135 179,676
115,233 125,662
55,494 64,209
22,061 26,021
3,405 4,528
( )
(2018 31 ) (2019 31 )
700,877 734,100
664,387 737,077
1,365,264 1,471,177
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VaR VaR
( 20 95 250 )

2018 31 2019 31

17,749 17,715

VaR

ALM

*
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« )
(2018 31 )
)
(6H) 389,639 389,639 —
@ 14,721,212
) 133,470
14,587,741 14,634,539 46,797
3 ( 920,548
) 28,153
892,395 959,946 67,550
(O] 986,736 986,736 —
16,856,513 16,970,861 114,348
[€H) 919,723 919,723 —
[©) 3,891,614 3,891,614 —
®) 8,574,502 8,624,779 50,276
O] ) 4,675,447 4,685,542 10,094
18,061,288 18,121,659 60,371
)
8,999 40,607 49,607
227 917 690
8,772 41,525 50,297
« D
« D
« D
« D
« D )
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(2019 31 )
)
(€H) 571,170 571,170 —
@ 15,729,259
) 146,536
15,582,723 15,746,872 164,149
&) ( 1,019,094
) 26,041
993,053 1,068,214 75,160
(O 588,943 588,943 —
17,735,890 17,975,200 239,310
€)) 1,130,702 1,130,702 —
() 3,871,603 3,871,603 —
®) 8,945,057 9,069,745 124,687
O] ) 4,791,819 4,812,415 20,596
18,739,183 18,884,467 145,283
)
49,100 50,490 99,590
927 2,362 1,434
50,027 48,128 98,156
« D
« D
« D
« D
« D )
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o

O] ®

*

€Y @

®

*

2018 31 2019 31

52,054 53,107

4
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(2018 31 )
(¢ )
389,639 — —
6,109,695 7,775,730 654,504
322,978 582,663 4,494
174,561 138,254 12,978
4,200 4,894 22,703
288,468 — 361
467,230 143,148 36,044
7,289,544 8,501,542 695,043

(2019 31 )

( )
571,170 — —
6,403,950 8,411,615 729,508
363,834 638,032 5,298
19,319 11,116 16,277
554 6,335 22,190
158,187 — 386
178,062 17,452 38,853
7,517,017 9,067,100 773,660
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(2018 31 )
(¢ )
919,723 — —
3,891,614 —_ _
2,322,871 5,714,413 560,609
1,629,396 2,858,146 187,904
8,763,606 8,572,560 748,513

(2019 31 )

( )
1,130,702 — _
3,871,603 — —
2,291,171 5,948,505 730,755
1,739,114 2,857,271 195,432
9,032,592 8,805,777 926,188
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(2018 31 )
( )
5,350 2,118 3,232
1,803 1,669 134
10,331 10,316 14
9,434 9,179 255
26,920 23,283 3,637
52 52 —
322,258 324,746 2,487
21,237 21,435 197
616,267 617,597 1,329
959,815 963,830 4,014
986,736 987,113 377
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(2019 31 )

( )
2,919 2,118 800
5,613 5,457 156
28,463 28,181 282
225,714 224,452 1,261
262,711 260,209 2,501
70 70 —
41,431 41,504 73
785 790 5
283,945 284,723 778
326,232 327,089 857
588,943 587,299 1,644
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OooooOodd
(
(2018 31 )
@
)
16,931 — 124 124
410,392 — 5,609 5,609
848,012 747,395 20,982 20,982
389,860 373,569 2,245 2,245
418,852 250,504 20,073 20,073
336,736 236,954 18,258 18,258
1,666,396 1,080,667 24,326 24,326
4,087,182 2,689,001 10,465 10,465
)
@
)
4,897,532 3,911,401 57,155 57,155
10,805,452 6,777,954 87,293 87,293
134,442 89,150 56 56
97,890 — 60 60
15,935,317 10,778,507 30,141 30,141
)
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ooooooo
@
( )
12,623 2,719 822
12,623 2,719 822
)
@
( )
34,000 34,000 219
5,000 5,000 3
104,500 104,500 120
143,500 143,500 95
)
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(2019 31 )
@
)
12,634 — 56 56
348,912 — 3,080 3,080
780,811 776,014 56,912 56,912
461,126 403,909 23,862 23,862
464,129 333,936 13,745 13,745
284,452 147,208 13,476 13,476
1,911,461 1,170,506 51,211 51,211
4,263,529 2,831,575 26,807 26,807
)
@
)
4,911,719 4,024,301 4,914 4,914
10,894,711 6,811,381 29,115 29,115
482,556 271,521 518 518
16,288,987 11,107,203 23,682 23,682
()
@
)
44,000 44,000 929
5,000 — 2
155,500 155,500 1,434
204,500 199,500 2,362
)
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(
1,941
3,706
€))
(2018 31 ) (2019 31 )
411,080 458,931
403,946 444,701
7,134 14,230
@
271.7 (2017 2018 31 )
27.9 (2018 2019 31 )
(©)
o
(€))
( 2017 ( 2018
2018 31 ) 2019 31 )
28,771 31,408
1,730 1,784
608 615
1,038 816
1,337 864
31,408 33,856
@
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(©)
(2018 31 ) (2019 31 )

22,088 23,703

16,534 17,978

5,553 5,725

9,320 10,152

14,873 15,877

14,873 15,877

14,873 15,877
O]

( 2017 ( 2018
2018 31 ) 2019 31 )

1,730 1,784

951 417

2,681 2,201
©)
®)

(2018 31 ) (2019 31 )
0.1 3.5 0.1 3.2
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(2018 31 ) (2019 31 )
35,563 40,768
() 104,177 250,518
67,887 114,467
207,628 405,755
() — 2,164
_ 4,671
6,474 6,836
201,153 398,918
748,731 977,125
32,172 50,188
780,903 1,027,314
579,750 628,395
) )
( ) ( )
o 57,363 T 57,841
— 637,113 — 686,236
)
250,518
248,353 248,353
(2018 31 ) (2019 31 )

30.7 30.5
113.3 —
2.4 6.2
2.2 2.1
82.8 26.3
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)
( 2017 2018 31 )
( )
) )
164,289 | 1,372,895 | 67,578 | 1,604,763 | 374,121 | 1,978,884 — | 1,978,884
300 4,563 386 5,250 | 16,749 21,999 | 21,999 —
164,590 | 1,377,458 | 67,964 | 1,610,013 | 390,870 | 2,000,884 | 21,999 | 1,978,884
28,876 110,669 | 20,952 160,498 | 92,303 252,801 3,156 249,645
1,543,219 |12,834,923 1,061,499 (15,439,642 |4,974,395 (20,414,037 — 20,414,037
679 220,107 | 26,262 247,049 | 135,003 382,052 | 11,509 370,543
5,197 672,731 1,016 678,945 | 52,676 731,621 21 731,643
6,550 57,600 | 12,038 76,189 | 23,660 99,850 — 99,850
)
(€)) 3,156
@) 11,509
9,100 355,877 71,958
345,669
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( 2018 2019 31 )
( )
) )
177,645 | 1,490,781 | 74,354 | 1,742,781 | 399,125 | 2,141,906 — | 2,141,906
12 5,670 235 5,017 | 20,377 26,295 | 26,295 —
177,658 | 1,496,451 | 74,589 | 1,748,699 | 419,502 | 2,168,201 | 26,295 | 2,141,906
24,864 132,822 | 21,940 179,627 | 104,955 284,583 2,775 281,807
1,627,806 |13,470,340 1,275,603 [16,373,750 [5,346,897 (21,720,648 — |21,720,648
507 292,913 | 27,231 320,652 | 152,156 472,809 | 16,405 456,403
4,955 704,003 998 709,957 | 57,406 767,363 21 767,385
8,554 52,443 | 15,060 76,057 | 21,678 97,736 — 97,736
)
[€h) 2,775
@ 16,405
9,284 406,525 78,162
373,913
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2017 2018 31 )
90
1€))
)
164,289 1,316,050 498,544 1,978,884
)
@
)
3,076 4,114,807 242,158 4,360,042
10
2018 2019 31 )
90
o
)
177,645 1,425,705 538,555 2,141,906
)
@
)
3,278 4,212,914 287,281 4,503,474
10
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(2017 2018 31 )
( ) ( ) )
( ) ()
150,970
635,401 100 32,780
138,990
)
(2018 2019 31 )
( ) ( ) )
( ) ()
77,400
635,401 100 61,480
151,080
)
)
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2017 2018
2018 31 ) 2019 31 )
1,721,667 31 1,816,366 85
324,692 91 141,552 90
)
2017 2018
2018 31 ) 2019 31 )
509,930 222,308
( —_ J—
509,930 222,308
() 1,570,500 1,570,500
(2018 31 ) (2019 31 )
) 2,733,310 2,893,403
29,432 40,799
2,703,878 2,852,604
) 1,570,500 1,570,500
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( ) ( ) (@)
2005 479,998 520,999 | 0.00 2018
() (125,000)
2019 1.91 2028
2013 1,102,520 1,054,922 | 1.75 | ( ) 2018
() (377,395)
() 2019 [ 2,450 [ 1,225 60.43 2025
)
59,300 79,200
1,348 5,000
5,500 5,800
6,000 1,593
1,504 33,044
2,000 8,000
36,104 1,400
]
5,000
800
1
2007 6,991,983 7,369,135 | 0.00 2018
(1,787,409)
() 2019 [ 43,39 [ 43,824 29.48 2048
)
) 11,319 12,408
3,101 2,375
1,830 1,750
1,327 2,167
6,750 8,340
9,814 9,314
115 100
98 78
1 1
8,945,057
— — 8,574,502 (2.280.804) — —
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)

2,291,171

1,841,115

1,945,459

1,429,631

732,299
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( ) ( ) (@)
919,723 1,130,702 2.49 —
1,629,396 1,739,114 2.63 —
1,033,111 933,641 2.61 —
) 3,046,051 3,052,704 2.53 | 2020 2038
873,088 859,834 2.42/| 2020 2022
3,891,614 3,871,603 2.28 —
()
( )
1,474,813 871,038 324,172 187,248
560,060 262,726 37,047 —
100
@
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@
( )
(2018 31 ) (2019 31 )
3,755 7,215
7,112 7,632
150,970 77,400
562 2,250
162,400 94,497
70 82
2 18
19,072 16,985
207,193 210,239
105,218 113,291
138,990 151,080
162 276
470,637 491,873
470,710 491,974
633,111 586,472
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( )
(2018 31 ) (2019 31 )

4,246 4,417
2,782 867
7,028 5,284
1,522 728
8,550 6,012
78,525 78,525
78,525 78,525
78,525 78,525
465,188 422,854
465,188 422,854
622,238 579,904
2,321 555
2,321 555
624,560 580,459
633,111 586,472
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(
( 2017 2018
2018 31 ) 2019 31 )
43,661 59,975
14,749 15,556
58,411 75,532
8,388 8,846
8,388 8,846
50,022 66,685
5,262 5,102
44,760 61,583
662 498
412 401
— 1,092
295 —
1,259 125
2,629 2,117
— 673
92 0
92 673
47,297 63,027
47,297 63,027
4,335 5,107
21 254
4,313 5,361
42,983 57,665
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( 2017 2018 31 )
( )
78,525 78,525 422,204 579,254 2,154 581,408
42,983 42,983 42,983
) 167 167
— — 42,983 42,983 167 43,151
78,525 78,525 465,188 622,238 2,321 624,560
( 2018 2019 31 )
( )
78,525 78,525 465,188 622,238 2,321 624,560
100,000 100,000 100,000
57,665 57,665 57,665
) 1,766 1,766
—_ — 42,334 42,334 1,766 44,100
78,525 78,525 422,854 579,904 555 580,459
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o

@

€Y

@

( 1,246 )
100 10
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)
( 2017 ( 2018
2018 31 ) 2019 31 )
— 1,092
644 485
( 2017 ( 2018
2018 31 ) 2019 31 )
1,835 1,799
1,072 1,159
748 476
138 198
121 139
)
(2018 31 )
( 200,381 6,812 )
(2019 31 )
( 203,244 6,995 )
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(2018 31 ) (2019 31 )
192 207
164 164
42 60
184 47
205 45
38 47
827 573
170 170
657 402
45 45
1,023 245
1,069 290
412 111
(2018 31 ) (2019 31 )
30.7 30.5
27.0 27.8
5.5 5.7
0.0 0.0
9.1 8.5
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)

( )

231,900 8,116

7,280,000 2,919

1,034,190 5,949

8,546,090 16,985

) | ( ) )| ¢ )

)

— 262 179 19 82
— 203 184 2 18

@

®
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( )
2019 31
( )
2019 31
EU-IFRS
2019 31
( ) 2019 31
2019 31
2019 31
EU
Wet toezicht accountantsorganisaties Wta
Verordening inzake de onafhankelijkheid van accountants bij
assurance-opdrachten Vio
( )

Verordening gedrags- en beroepsregels
accountants VGBA
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61 2018 31 46

2019 31
0.5
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2018 IFRS

IFRS

EU-1FRS
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720

2019 31 2018 31

EU
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EU-1FRS
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EU 11

2019 12

R.AJM
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Independent auditor's report

To: the shareholder and board of management of Toyota Motor Finance (Netherlands) B.V.

Report on the audit of the financial statements for the financial year
ended 31 March 2019 included in the annual report & financial
statements

Our opinion
We have audited the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 March 2019 of
Toyota Motor Finance (Netherlands) BV., based in Amsterdam.

In our opinion the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of Toyota
Motor Finance (Netherlands) BV. as at 31 March 2019, and of its result and its cash flows for the year ended 31
March 2019 in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union
(EU-IFRS) and with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

The financial statements comprise:
The statement of financial position as at 31 March 2019
The following statements for the year ended 31 March 2019: the statements of comprehensive income,
changes in equity and cash flows
The notes, comprising a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information

Basis for our opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Dutch law, including the Dutch Standards on Auditing.

Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the “Our responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements” section of our report.

We are independent of Toyota Motor Finance (Netherlands) BV. (the Company) in accordance with the EU
Regulation on specific requirements regarding statutory audit of public-interest entities, the Wet toezicht
accountantsorganisaties (Wta, Audit firms supervision act), the Verordening inzake de onafhankelijkheid van
accountants bij assurance-opdrachten (ViO, Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants, a regulation with respect
to independence), and other relevant independence regulations in the Netherlands. Furthermore, we have complied
with the Verordening gedrags- en beroepsregels accountants (VGBA, Dutch Code of Ethics).

We believe the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.
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Materiality
Materiality EUR 61 million (31 March 2018: EUR 46 million)
Benchmark applied 0.5% of total assets (total current assets and non-current assets) as at
31 March 2019
Explanation We have used total assets as a benchmark as we believe that this

benchmark is the most appropriate metric for the performance of the
Company. The holders of the notes, debt and loans issued by the
Company are most interested in the proceeds of the loans to related
companies, which is best represented by total assets.

We have also taken into account misstatements and/or possible misstatements that in our opinion are material for
the users of the financial statements for qualitative reasons.

We agreed with the board of management that misstatements in excess of EUR 3 million, which are identified
during the audit, would be reported to them, as well as smaller misstatements that in our view must be reported on
gualitative grounds.

Our key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in

our audit of the financial statements. There are no other changes to the key audit matters compared to last year.
The key audit matters are not a comprehensive reflection of all matters discussed. We have communicated the key
audit matters to the Board of Management.

These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Existence and valuation of loans issued to related companies

Risk

Our audit approach

Key observations

The main activity of Toyota Motor Finance (Netherlands) BV. is to operate
as a financing company of the Toyota Group, raising funds from third party
lenders through bond issuance, loans and other facilities. The Company is
exposed to the risk that a Toyota Group company defaults on meeting its
obligations.

As loans to related companies represent the most significant proportion of the
Company’s current and non-current assets, any impairment may have a
material impact on the financial statements. As such we identified existence
and valuation of loans issued to related companies including the company’s
adoption of IFRS 9 as of 1 April 2018 as key audit matter.

We refer to “Note 2: Changes in accounting policy and disclosures” of the
financial statements where management has disclosed the policies and
procedures in respect of valuation of loans issued to related companies
including the adoption of IFRS 9.

In our audit, we have applied mainly substantive audit procedures on the
balances of loans issued to related companies. The substantive audit
procedures included detailed assessment of loan contracts and detailed
analytical reviews. We obtained loan confirmations to determine the existence
of the loans. We have verified the valuation of loans issued to related
companies by obtaining an understanding of the impairment process and
model. We have reviewed key judgments and estimates made by
management to calculate the expected credit loss. We assessed the
calculation of the expected credit loss with the support of our internal
specialists and assessed the appropriateness of the relevant disclosures
made.

Based on our procedures performed, we did not identify evidence of material
misstatement in the valuation and existence of loans issued to related

companies.

The disclosures on loans issued to related companies meet the requirements
of EU-IFRS
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Report on other information included in the annual report & financial
statements

In addition to the financial statements and our independent auditor's report thereon, the annual report & financial
statements contains other information, that consists of:

the Report of the board of management

Other Information as required by Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code

Based on the following procedures performed, we conclude that the other information:
is consistent with the financial statements and does not contain material misstatements
contains the information as required by Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code

We have read the other information. Based on our knowledge and understanding, obtained through

our audit of the financial statements or otherwise, we have considered whether the other information contains
material misstatements. By performing these procedures, we comply with the requirements

of Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code and Dutch Standard 720. The scope of the procedures performed is
substantially less than the scope of those performed in our audit of the financial statements.

The board of management is responsible for the preparation of the other information, including the Report of the
board of management in accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code and other information as
required by Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Engagement
We were engaged by the board of management as auditor of the Company on 31 July 2018, as of the audit for the
financial year ended 31 March 2019.

No prohibited non-audit services
We have not provided prohibited non-audit services as referred to in Article 5(1) of the EU Regulation
on specific requirements regarding statutory audit of public-interest entities.

Other non-prohibited services provided

In addition to the statutory audit of the financial statements, we provided Comfort letters in connection with (i) the
Information Memorandum for the Medium Term Note Programme and (ii) the secondary distribution (Uridashi) by
Toyota Motor Finance (Netherlands) BV.
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Description of responsibilities regarding the financial statements

Responsibilities of the board of management for the financial statements

The board of management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with EU-IFRS and Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code. Furthermore,

the board of management is responsible for such internal control as the board of management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

As part of the preparation of the financial statements, the board of management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Based on the financial reporting frameworks mentioned, the
Board of Management should prepare the financial statements using the going concern basis of accounting, unless
the board of management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so. The board of management should disclose events and circumstances that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern in the financial statements.

Our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objective is to plan and perform the audit engagement in a manner that allows us to obtain sufficient and
appropriate audit evidence for our opinion.

Our audit has been performed with a high, but not absolute, level of assurance, which means we may not detect all
material errors and fraud during our audit.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements. The materiality affects the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures and the evaluation of the
effect of identified misstatements on our opinion.

We have exercised professional judgment and have maintained professional skepticism throughout the audit, in
accordance with Dutch Standards on Auditing, ethical requirements and independence requirements. Our audit
included among others:
Identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, designing and performing audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtaining audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control
Obtaining an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control
Evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the board of management
Concluding on the appropriateness of the board of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause a company to cease to continue as a going concern.
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Evaluating the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures.

Evaluating whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant findings in internal control that we identify during our
audit. In this respect we also submit an additional report to the board of management of Toyota Motor Finance
(Netherlands) B.V., in accordance with Article 11 of the EU Regulation on specific requirements regarding statutory
audit of public-interest entities. The information included in this additional report is consistent with our audit opinion
in this auditor’'s report.

We provide the board of management with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Board of Management , we determine the key audit matters: those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements. We describe these matters in our

auditor's report, unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, not communicating the matter is in the public interest.

Amsterdam, 12 July 2019

Ernst & Young Accountants LLP

signed by R.A.J.M. Emmerink
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